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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
(Unaudited)

Item 1. Financial Statements

March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and due from ban $ 46,04¢ $ 40,42
Securities available for sal
Mortgage-backed securities ($17,965 and $24,9fdiratalue pursuant to the fair value option at MaB1, 2013 and December 31, 2012,
respectively’ 764,70: 720,11:
Other securities ($29,933 and $29,577 at fair vplusuant to the favalue option at March 31, 2013 and December 312 264pectively 235,59 229,45
Loans held for sal 9,907 5,31:
Loans:
Multi-family residentia 1,528,35: 1,534,43i
Commercial real esta 507,93 515,43t
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 615,66: 637,35:
One-to-four family — residentia 197,26¢ 198,96¢
Cc-operative apartmen 8,221 6,302
Constructior 10,95: 14,38:
Small Business Administratic 8,81: 9,49¢
Taxi medallion 8,771 9,92
Commercial business and ott 302,72¢ 295,07t
Net unamortized premiums and unearned loan 12,49¢ 12,74¢
Allowance for loan losses (31,02) (31,109
Net loans 3,170,171 3,203,01
Interest and dividends receival 17,20¢ 17,917
Bank premises and equipment, 22,01¢ 22,50(
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stc 38,68¢ 42,337
Bank owned life insuranc 107,06¢ 106,24
Goodwill 16,127 16,127
Core deposit intangibl 351 46€
Other assets 48,63¢ 47,50z
Total assets $ 447651 $ 4,45141
LIABILITIES
Due to depositors
Nor-interest bearin $ 160,23 $ 155,78¢
Interes-bearing:
Certificate of deposit accour 1,200,901 1,253,22!
Savings accouni 281,14! 288,39¢
Money market accoun 139,71 148,61¢
NOW accounts 1,278,07 1,136,59!
Total interes-bearing deposit 2,899,83: 2,826,84.
Mortgagors' escrow depos 46,58 32,56(
Borrowed funds ($24,742 and $23,922 at fair valuespant to the faivalue option at March 31, 2013 and December 312 2@&kpectively 683,06 763,10!
Securities sold under agreements to repurc 185,30( 185,30(
Other liabilities 57,61« 45,45
Total liabilities 4,032,63! 4,009,05
Commitments and contingencies (Note 4 and No
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock ($0.01 par value; 5,000,000 steutt®orized; None issue - -
Common stock ($0.01 par value; 100,000,000 sharé®eazed; 31,530,595 shares issued at March 3113 26d December 31, 2012; 30,846, share:
and 30,743,329 shares outstanding at March 31, @6dDecember 31, 2012, respective 31E 31E
Additional paic-in capital 200,13 198,31
Treasury stock, at average cost (684,477 shareg&n@66 shares March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respecti (9,179 (10,257
Retained earning 244 50! 241,85t
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net ofstaxe 8,10z 12,135
Total stockholders' equity 443,88: 442 36!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 447651 $  4,451,4L

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktoeasolidated financial statements




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

For the three months

ended March 31

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012
Interest and dividend income
Interest and fees on loa $ 4294 $ 46,56(
Interest and dividends on securiti
Interest 6,954 7,631
Dividends 17t 207
Other interest income 17 17
Total interest and dividend income 50,08¢ 54,41
Interest expense
Deposits 8,291 10,91(
Other interest expense 7,64¢ 6,16(
Total interest expense 15,94( 17,07(
Net interest income 34,14¢ 37,34t
Provision for loan losses 6,00( 6,00(
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 28,14¢ 31,34¢
Non-interest income
Loan fee incoms 60¢ 46€
Banking services fee incon 432 45E
Net loss on sale of loal 9) -
Net gain on sale of securiti 2,85¢ -
Net loss from fair value adjustmer (1293 (44¢)
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock divide 414 38t
Bank owned life insuranc 82E 69€
Other income 342 324
Total non-interest income 5,34¢ 1,87¢
Non-interest expense
Salaries and employee bene 12,23: 11,04
Occupancy and equipme 1,86( 1,93(
Professional service 1,61¢ 1,722
FDIC deposit insuranc 991 1,017
Data processin 1,042 97¢€
Depreciation and amortizatic 767 834
Other real estate owned/foreclosure expt 66€ 712
Other operating expenses 3,23¢ 3,30¢
Total non-interest expense 22,41¢ 21,53¢
Income before income taxe 11,07¢ 11,681
Provision for income taxes
Federa 3,461 3,62¢
State and local 85¢ 934
Total taxes 4,31¢ 4,55¢
Net income $ 6,75¢ $ 7,12¢
Basic earnings per common sh $ 02z $ 0.22
Diluted earnings per common shi $ 02z $ 0.2:
Dividends per common sha $ 01z $ 0.1z

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended
March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Comprehensive Income, net of tax
Net income $ 6,75¢ $ 7,12¢
Amortization of actuarial loss¢ 174 14¢
Amortization of prior service credi (6) (6)
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net (4,209 1,217
Comprehensive income $ 2,721  $ 8,48¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended
March 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 6,75¢ $ 7,12¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal byoperating activities
Provision for loan losse 6,00( 6,00(
Depreciation and amortization of bank premisesemdpmen: 767 834
Amortization of premium, net of accretion of disabd 1,77¢ 1,561
Net loss from fair value adjustmer 122 44¢
Net loss from sale of loar 9 -
Net gain from sale of securitit (2,85%) -
Income from bank owned life insuran (825) (696€)
Stocl-based compensation expel 1,99: 1,41¢
Deferred compensatic (423) (306)
Amortization of core deposit intangibl 117 117
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme (24%) (106)
Deferred income tax provisic 904 71z
Decrease in prepaid FDIC assessn 927 94¢€
Increase (decrease) in other liabilit 2,08¢ (1,676
Decrease in other assets 3,00« 54C
Net cash provided by operating activities 20,11% 16,92
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of bank premises and equipt (289) 470
Net (purchase) redemptions of Federal Home Loark®&iNew York share 3,651 (1,976
Purchases of securities available for ¢ (171,019 (122,51)
Proceeds from sales and calls of secur 96,39¢ -
Proceeds from maturities and prepayments of séesiavailable for sal 37,46: 39,03t
Net (originations) and repayment of loe 4,42¢ (19,877)
Purchases of loar (452) (3,456
Proceeds from sale of real estate ow 1,79 624
Proceeds from sale of delinquent loans 8,16¢ 9,091
Net cash used in investing activities (19,860) (99,539
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in ncinterest bearing deposi 4,44¢ 12,92:
Net (decrease) increase in inte-bearing deposit 72,70( (743)
Net increase in mortgagors' escrow depc 14,02¢ 11,457
Net (repayment) proceeds from sl-term borrowed fund (121,500) 58,50(
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 110,27: 47,41«
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (69,917) (62,000
Purchases of treasury stc (959 (1,652
Excess tax benefit from stc-based payment arrangeme 24t 10€
Proceeds from issuance of common stock upon exeotistock option 22 244
Cash dividends paid (3,979 (3,96%)
Net cash provided by financing activities 5,36¢ 62,28:
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis 5,621 (20,33)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 40,42t 55,72:
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 46,04¢ $ 35,39(
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DISCLOSURE
Interest paic $ 15,65: $ 16,99
Income taxes pai 1,581 5,21¢
Taxes paid if excess tax benefits were not tax ciéule 1,82¢ 5,32¢
Non-cash activities
Securities purchased not yet seti 14,30¢ -
Loans transferred to Other Real Estate Ow 67¢ 1,29:
Loans provided for the sale of Other Real Estate€ 2,08¢ 221
Loans held for investment transferred to loans faldale 7,682 -

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholdergquity

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended
March 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012
Common Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ 31 % 31t
No activity - -
Balance, end of period $ 31 $ 31E
Additional Paid-In Capital
Balance, beginning of peric $ 198,31 $ 195,62¢
Award of common shares released from Employee Behefst (133,656 and 146,735 common shares fottteee months ended March 31, 2013 a
2012, respectively 1,562 1,362
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockaweirds (98,610 and 85,163 common shares for tee thonths ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively, 78 151
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (42,4006&®50 common shares for tthree months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, regplgt 55 73
Stoclk-based compensation activity, 1 (120 4
Stock-based income tax benefit 24E 10€
Balance, end of period $ 200,13 $ 197,32!
Treasury Stock
Balance, beginning of peric $ (10,257 $ (7,355)
Purchases of outstanding shares (18,560 and 9Z@fAMon shares for ttthree months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, regpkgt (30)) (1,282
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockawveirds (151,652 and 113,993 common shares fdhtee months ended March 31, 2013 and 20:
respectively’ 1,98: 1,345
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (52,3206&@B0 common sharfor the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2@%pectively’ 691 802
Purchases of shares to fund options exercised33%8d 40,866 common shafor the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2@%spectively’ (637) (54¢)
Repurchase of shares to satisfy tax obligation®@®and 27,883 common shares for the three memithsd March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectivel (653 (370
Balance, end of period $ 9,179 $ (7,410
Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of peric $ 241,85t $ 223,51(
Net income 6,75¢ 7,12¢
Cash dividends declared and paid on common sh&@es3(per commoshare for the three months ended March 31, 2012@ahd) (3,979 (3,96%)
Issuance upon exercise of stock options (9,92018mB0 common sharifor the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2@&pectively’ (35) (24)
Shares issued upon vesting of restricted stockaweirds (53,042 and 28,830 common shares for tee thonths ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectivley) (99) (97)
Balance, end of period $ 24450 $ 226,55:
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Balance, beginning of peric $ 12,137  $ 4,81
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on seesidtiailable for sale, net of taxes of approxinya$@,013 and ($962) for the three months ended
March 31, 201and 2012, respective (2,599 1,217
Amortization of actuarial losses, net of taxes mpr@ximately ($135) and ($11for the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2@%&pectively 174 14¢
Amortization of prior service credits, net of tax@sapproximately $5 for ththree months ended March 31, 2013 and 2 (6) (6)
Reclassification adjustment for losses includedeéhincome, net of taxes of approximatley $1,243le three months ended March 31, 2013 (1,609 -
Balance, end of period $ 8,10: $ 6,17:%
Total Stockholders' Equity $ 443,88. $ 422 95¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part okthessolidated financial statements .
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PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

1. Basis of Presentation

Flushing Financial Corporation (the “Holding Compgn a Delaware corporation, is a bank holding camp On February 28, 2013 the Holding Companyholly owned subsidia
Flushing Savings Bank, FSB (the “Savings Bank”)rgee with and into (the “Mergerflushing Commercial Bank. Flushing Commercial Bards the surviving entity of the Merger ¢
its name was changed to Flushing Bank. Referelmeesin to the “Bankinean the Savings Bank (including its wholly ownalsidiary, Flushing Commercial Bank) prior to thefder an
the surviving entity after the Merger. The Holdi@gmpany and its direct and indirect whollyned subsidiaries, including the Bank, Flushingf@red Funding Corporation, Flush
Service Corporation, and FSB Properties Inc., aliectively herein referred to as “we,” “us,” “oudhd the “Company.”

The Merger was the result of the combination of emtities under common control, and in accordanitie ASC 805-50-30-5, the Bank measured the receghéssets and liabilities
transferred at their carrying amounts (historicadty for this transaction.

The primary business of the Holding Company isdperation of its whollyswned subsidiary, the Bank. The unaudited cons@@iéinancial statements presented in this Quarfeepor
on Form 10-Q (“Quarterly Report”) include the colige results of the Company on a consolidatedsbasi

The Holding Company also owns Flushing Financigbi@h Trust Il, Flushing Financial Capital Trust,land Flushing Financial Capital Trust IV (the tiEts"),which are special purpc
business trusts. The Trusts are not included ilCbrapany’s consolidated financial statements a€tivapany would not absorb the losses of the Titikisses were to occur.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finantitements are prepared in accordance with accauptimciples generally accepted in the United StaiteAmerica (“GAAP”)anc
general practices within the banking industry. Tifermation furnished in these interim statememtfiects all adjustments which are, in the opiniérmanagement, necessary for a
statement of the results for such presented pedbttee Company. Such adjustments are of a norecairring nature, unless otherwise disclosed in @uarterly Report. All intecompan'
balances and transactions have been eliminatednisotidation. The results of operations in therfim statements are not necessarily indicativenefresults that may be expected for
full year.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finandatements have been prepared in conformity withitlseructions to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q amticle 10, Rule 1081 of
Regulation SX for interim financial statements. Accordinglyertain information and footnote disclosures norgnaitluded in financial statements prepared in estaoce with GAAP ha\
been condensed or omitted pursuant to the ruleseapdations of the Securities and Exchange Comamng8SEC”). The unaudited consolidated interim financial infatron should be rei
in conjunction with the Company’s Annual Reportform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

When necessary, certain reclassifications have beefe to the prior-period consolidated financiatesnents to conform to the current-period presiemat
2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymivith GAAP requires management to make estimateb assumptions that affect the reported amountsséts and liabilities, a
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiethatdate of the financial statements, and repataedunts of revenue and expenses during the reggénod. Estimates that are particul
susceptible to change in the near term are usedrinection with the determination of the allowafmeloan losses (“ALLL"),the evaluation of goodwill for impairment, the evation o
the need for a valuation allowance of the Compaulgferred tax assets, the evaluation of other-tearporary impairment (“OTTI"pn securities and the valuation of certain finak
instruments. The current economic environment hasased the degree of uncertainty inherent irethesterial estimates. Actual results could diffem these estimates.

3. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is computed in accordance wittoé@nting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 2@arnings Per Share,” which provides that unvesteate-based payment awards
that contain nonforfeitable rights to dividendderidend equivalents (whether paid or unpaid) aeigipating securities and as such should be dediin the calculation of earnings per
share. Basic earnings per common share is compytdd/iding net income available to common shalééis by the total weighted average number of comsimares outstanding, which
includes unvested participating securities. The gamy’s unvested restricted stock and restricteckstmit awards are considered participating seestifTherefore, weighted average
common shares outstanding used for computing leasiings per common share includes common shatstsoding plus unvested restricted stock and oesttistock unit awards. The
computation of diluted earnings per share inclutiesadditional dilutive effect of stock options stainding during the period. Common stock equivtalémat are anti-dilutive are not
included in the computation of diluted earnings g@nmon share. The numerator for calculating basécdiluted earnings per common share is net incra#gable to common
shareholders.




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Earnings per common share has been computed bagkd tllowing:

For the three months ended

March 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share d¢
Net income, as reporte $ 6,75¢ $ 7,12¢
Divided by:
Weighted average common shares outstan 30,44¢ 30,39¢
Weighted average common stock equivalents 32 24
Total weighted average common shares outstandidg@mmon stock equivalents 30,48: 30,42(
Basic earnings per common sh $ 0.22 0.22
Diluted earnings per common share $ 02: $ 0.2:
Dividend payout ratic 59.1% 56.5%

1) For the three months ended March 31, 2013, optiomsirchase 542,400 shares at an average exergiseop $17.66 were not included in the computatidrliluted earnings p
common share as they were aditistive. For the three months ended March 31, 2@p2ions to purchase 720,340 shares at an averageise price of $16.71were not include
the computation of diluted earnings per commonesharthey were ar-dilutive.

4, Debt and Equity Securities

The Companys investments in equity securities that have rgaditerminable fair values and all investments ebtdsecurities are classified in one of the follogvihree categories a
accounted for accordingly: (1) trading securiti@},securities available for sale and (3) secgitield-to-maturity.

The Company did not hold any trading securitiesemurities held-tenaturity during the three month periods ended M&th2013 and 2012. Securities available for sedaecorded at fe
value.

The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidfof securities available for sale at March 30132:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses
(In thousands

U.S. government agenci $ 10,00¢ $ 10,02 $ 14 $ -
Corporate 103,66¢ 108,32: 4,67¢ 19
Municipals 81,11: 81,20( 417 33C
Mutual funds 21,82 21,82 - -
Other 18,17 14,220 17 3,962
Total other securities 234,78. 235,59 5,12 4,311
REMIC and CMC 492,49: 509,44( 19,44¢ 2,497
GNMA 37,487 40,84: 3,35¢ -
FNMA 193,31( 197,901 5,322 72¢
FHLMC 16,06¢ 16,51t 447 -
Total mortgage-backed securities 739,35 764,70: 28,57( 3,22¢
Total securities available for sale $ 974,13¢ $ 1,00029- $ 33,69: 7,530

The table above includes commitments to purchaserisies totaling $14.3 million which settled dugirpril 2013.

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table abwslade two private issue collateralized mortgabégations (“CMOs”) that are collateralized by corarcial real estate mortgages with
amortized cost and market values totaling $18.0aniand $18.4 million, respectively, at March 2013. The remaining private issue mortgage-baskedrities are backed by one-to-four

family residential mortgage loans.




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

The following table shows the Compasyvailable for sale securities with gross unredlibsses and their fair value aggregated by categad length of time the individual securities &
been in a continuous unrealized loss position ackl&1, 2013:

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands
Corporate $ 9,981 $ 19 $ 9,981 $ 19 $ - 8 =
Municipals 21,66¢ 33C 21,66¢ 33C - -
Other 5,60( 3,96: - - 5,60( 3,962
Total other securities 37,24 4,311 31,64 34¢ 5,60( 3,962
REMIC and CMC 130,53: 2,497 106,77: 56C 23,76 1,93
FNMA 73,528 72¢ 73,52% 72¢ - -
Total mortgage-backed securities 204,05} 3,22¢ 180,29« 1,28¢ 23,76. 1,937
Total securities available for sale $ 241,30 $ 7531 $ 211,94. $ 163t $ 29,36 $ 5,89¢

OTTI losses on impaired securities must be fullyognized in earnings if an investor has the intersell the debt security or if it is more likelyain not that the investor will be requiret
sell the debt security before recovery of its amed cost. However, even if an investor does ngeekto sell a debt security, the investor musiuata the expected cash flows tc
received and determine if a credit loss has ocduirethe event that a credit loss has occurrely, te amount of impairment associated with thalitress is recognized in earnings in
Consolidated Statements of Income. Amounts relaiinfactors other than credit losses are recordegiccumulated other comprehensive income (“AOClIithin StockholdersEquity.
Additional disclosures regarding the calculatiorciadit losses as well as factors considered bynthestor in reaching a conclusion that an investni®not other-thatemporarily impaire
are required.

The Company reviewed each investment that had eemlired loss at March 31, 2013. An unrealized dsts when the current fair value of an investnigitess than its amortized ¢
basis. Unrealized losses on available for saleriissy that are deemed to be temporary, are recbil AOCI, net of tax. Unrealized losses that@esidered to be other-théemporar
are split between credit related and noncreditedlampairments, with the credit related impairmieeing recorded as a charge against earnings andbthcredit related impairment be
recorded in AOCI, net of tax.

The Company evaluates its pooled trust preferredriees, included in the table above in the roweled “Other”,using an impairment model through an independend gharty, whict
includes evaluating the financial condition of eaclinterparty. For single issuer trust prefermclusties, the Company evaluates the issuimancial condition. The Company evaluate
mortgagebacked securities by reviewing the characteristitshe securities, including delinquency and fooeare levels, projected losses at various lossrisgvevels and cred
enhancement and coverage. In addition, privateei€MOs are evaluated using an impairment modeltiran independent third party. When an OTTI isiified, the portion of th
impairment that is credit related is determinedrignagement using the following methods: (1) fosttpreferred securities, the credit related impairtris determined by using a discout
cash flow model from an independent third partythvihe difference between the present value optbgected cash flows and the amortized cost bdsiBeosecurity recorded as a cr
related loss against earnings; (2) for mortghgeked securities, credit related impairment iguaeined for each security by estimating lossesdasea set of assumptions, which inclt
delinquency and foreclosure levels, projected lpsgevarious loss severity levels, credit enhancgraed coverage; and (3) for private issue CMOsuhh an impairment model from
independent third party and then recording thosimaged losses as a credit related loss againsinggs:




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Corporate:

The unrealized losses in Corporate securities atMal, 2013 consist of losses on one CorporatarisecThe unrealized loss was caused by movemniaritgerest rates. It is not anticipa
that this security would be settled at a price tkaiess than the amortized cost of the Compamyvestment. This security is performing accordiagts terms and, in the opinion
management, will continue to perform accordingtsaérms. The Company does not have the intergltahss security and it is more likely than noet@ompany will not be required to ¢
the security before recovery of the security’s aimed cost basis. This conclusion is based uporsidering the Compang’cash and working capital requirements and cototah@nc
regulatory obligations, none of which the Compamyidves would cause the sale of the security. Therethe Company did not consider this investntenbe other-thatemporarily
impaired at March 31, 2013.

Municipals:

The unrealized losses in Municipal securities atdfie81, 2013, consist of losses on eight municgeaiurities. The unrealized losses were caused lwemments in interest rates. It is
anticipated that these securities would be segtexprice that is less than the amortized cogi@fCompanys investment. Each of these securities is perfagrattording to its terms and
the opinion of management, will continue to perfaotording to its terms. The Company does not flaeéntent to sell these securities and it is nlikedy than not the Company will n

be required to sell the securities before recoeéhe securities’ amortized cost basis. This cosion is based upon considering the Compsieg'sh and working capital requirements
contractual and regulatory obligations, none ofalihihe Company believes would cause the sale o$eharities. Therefore, the Company did not comdidese investments to be other-
than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2013.

Other Securities:

The unrealized losses in Other Securities at M&ih2013, consist of losses on one single issust preferred security and two pooled trust preféisecurities. The unrealized losse
such securities were caused by market interestiMgylaa significant widening of credit spreadsrass markets for these securities and illiquiditgl aincertainty in the financial marke
These securities are currently rated below investrgeade. The pooled trust preferred securitiesatohave collateral that is subordinate to theselagthe Company owns. The Company’
management evaluates these securities using anrimgra model, through an independent third patgt ts applied to debt securities. In estimatingilOldsses, management considers
the length of time and the extent to which the ¥f@ilue has been less than amortized cost; (2)utrert interest rate environment; (3) the financ@hdition and neaterm prospects of tl
issuer, if applicable; and (4) the intent and &pitif the Company to retain its investment in teewity for a period of time sufficient to allowrfany anticipated recovery in fair val
Additionally, management reviews the financial citind of each individual issuer within the pooledgt preferred securities. All of the issuers @& tinderlying collateral of the pooled tr
preferred securities we reviewed are banks.

For each bank, our review included the followingfpenance items of the banks:

Ratio of tangible equity to ass¢

Tier 1 Risk Weighted Capiti

Net interest margil

Efficiency ratio for most recent two quartt

Return on average assets for most recent two qa.

Texas Ratio (ratio of n-performing assets plus assets past due over 90ddagied by tangible equity plus the reserve farldosses
Credit ratings (where applicabl

Capital issuances within the past year (where agble)

Ability to complete Federal Deposit Insurance Cogtion (‘FDIC") assisted acquisitions (where applical

Based on the review of the above factors, we calecluhat:
] All of the performing issuers in our pools are wepitalized banks and do not appear likely tolbsexl by their regulator

- All of the performing issuers in our pools will dotue as a going concern and will not default agirteecurities
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In order to estimate potential future defaults deterrals, we segregated the performing underlisegers by their Texas Ratio. We then reviewedopeting issuers with Texas Ratios
excess of 50%. The Texas Ratio is a key indicatdh® health of the institution and the likelihoofifailure. This ratio compares the problem assétthe institution to the institutios’
available capital and reserves to absorb lossdsatiealikely to occur in these assets. There weréssuers in our pooled trust preferred securitibgch had a Texas Ratio in exces:
50.00%. We assigned a zero default rate to theseris. Our analysis also assumed that issuersndyrdeferring would default with no recovery, aisduers that have defaulted will have
recovery.

We had an independent third party prepare a digeduwash flow analysis for each of these poolest pteferred securities based on the assumptisosisied above. Other significant
assumptions were: (1) two issuers totaling $7. Tionilwill prepay in the second quarter of 2013 &nd issuers totaling $21.5 million will prepay inet second quarter of 2015; (2) senior
classes will not call the debt on their portionsg €3) use of the forward London Interbank OffeRate (“LIBOR”) curve. The cash flows were discouhgs the effective rate for each
security.

One of the pooled trust preferred securities is @gedays past due and the Company has stoppediragénterest. The remaining pooled trust prefesedurity as well as the single iss
trust preferred security both are performing acigrdo their terms. The Company also owns a potiest preferred security that is carried underftéievalue option, where the unreali:
losses are included in the Consolidated Statenwgritscome —Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustments. Téggurity is over 90 days past due and the Compasystopped accrui
interest.

It is not anticipated at this time that the onegl8rissuer trust preferred security and the twolgubtrust preferred securities would be settled ptice that is less than the amortized co
the Companys investment. Each of these securities is perfagragtording to its terms; except for the pooledttpreferred securities for which the Company hagped accruing interest
discussed above and, in the opinion of managenesgdoon the review performed at March 31, 2013,owittinue to perform according to its terms. Thar(any does not have the ini
to sell these securities and it is more likely thahthe Company will not be required to sell teewsities before recovery of the securitiasiortized cost basis. This conclusion is based
considering the Comparg/’cash and working capital requirements and comtah@nd regulatory obligations, none of which @empany believes would cause the sale of the s&=
Therefore, the Company did not consider the onglesiissuer trust preferred security and the twdgmberust preferred securities to be other-thanpimarily impaired at March 31, 2013.

At March 31, 2013, the Company held six trust pmefe issues which had a current credit rating déast one rating below investment grade. Two of¢hissues are carried under the
value option and therefore, changes in fair vaheerecluded in the Consolidated Statement of Inceri\et gain (loss) from fair value adjustments.

The following table details the remaining four trpseferred issues that were evaluated to deterihihey were other-thatemporarily impaired at March 31, 2013. The cldss €ompan
owns in pooled trust preferred securities doeshage any excess subordination.

Deferrals/Defaults

Actual as a Expected
Cumulative Percentage Percentage Current
Issuer Performing Amortized Fair Credit Related  of Original of Performing Lowest
Type Class Banks Cost Value OTTI Security Collateral Rating
(Dollars in thousands
Single issue n/a 1 $ 30C $ 29t $ - None None BB-
Single issue n/a 1 50C 517 - None None B+
Pooled issue B1 19 5,617 2,88( 2,19¢ 24.8% 0.0% C
Pooled issuer C1 19 3,64¢ 2,42¢ 1,547 21.3% 0.0% C

Total $ 10,06: $ 6,117 $ 3,73¢

REMIC and CMO:
The unrealized losses in Real Estate Mortgage tmesg Conduit (“REMIC")and CMO securities at March 31, 2013 consist okesegsues from the Federal Home Loan Mort
Corporation (“FHLMC?"), six issues from the FedeRational Mortgage Association (“FNMA”) and five pate issues.
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The unrealized losses on the REMIC and CMO seesriisued by FHLMC and FNMA were caused by movesnieninterest rates. It is not anticipated thaséhsecurities would be sett
at a price that is less than the amortized costh@iCompanys investment. Each of these securities is perfagraiccording to its terms and, in the opinion of agement, will continue
perform according to its terms. The Company dodshawe the intent to sell these securities and inore likely than not the Company will not be riegd to sell the securities' befi
recovery of the securities’ amortized cost baskis Eonclusion is based upon considering the Cogigagash and working capital requirements and coniadand regulatory obligatior
none of which the Company believes would causeséhe of the securities. Therefore, the Companyndidconsider these investments to be other-tearporarily impaired at March &
2013.

The unrealized losses at March 31, 2013 on REMIC@MO securities issued by private issuers werseaily movements in interest rates, a significademing of credit spreads acr
markets for these securities and illiquidity anatentainty in the financial markets. Each of theseusities has some level of credit enhancementsnand are collateralized by spbime
loans. Currently, one of these securities is pariieg according to its terms, with four of thesewsdies remitting less than the full principal anmb due. The principal loss for these 1
securities totaled $0.2 million for the three manéimded March 31, 2013. These losses were ariédifrathe cumulative credit related OTTI charge=orded for these four securities.

Credit related impairment for mortgabecked securities are determined for each sechoyitgstimating losses based on the following seissumptions: (1) delinquency and foreclo
levels; (2) projected losses at various loss sgvtavels; and (3) credit enhancement and coverdgsed on these reviews, an OTTI charge was notded during the three months en
March 31, 2013.

It is not anticipated at this time that the fivévate issue CMOs would be settled at a price thé¢ss than the current amortized cost of the Cogipanvestment. The Company does
have the intent to sell these securities and idse likely than not the Company will not be reedirto sell the securities before recovery of theusges’ amortized cost basis. Tl
conclusion is based upon considering the Compacgsh and working capital requirements and cowiahand regulatory obligations, none of which @mmpany believes would cause
sale of the securities. Therefore, the Companyndictonsider these investments to be other-thaupdearily impaired at March 31, 2013.

At March 31, 2013, the Company held five privatus CMOs which had a current credit rating of ast®ne rating below investment grade.

The following table details the five private isdDBIOs that were evaluated to determine if they vegher-than-temporarily impaired at March 31, 2013:

Cumulative
OTTI Current Average
Amortized  Fair  Outstanding Charges  Year of Lowest Collateral Located in: FICO
Security Cost Value Principal Recorded Issuance Maturity Rating CA FL VA NY NJ TX co Score
(Dollars in thousands
1 $ 947t $884t $ 10,43. $ 3,47C 2006 05/25/36 D 40% 16% 716
2 4,21¢ 3,69 4,35: 727 2006 08/19/36 D 58% 1% 737
3 4,42( 4,16¢ 4,81 1,107 2006 08/25/36 D 35% 15% 711
4 3,30¢ 3,15( 3,82¢ 78C 2006 08/25/36 D 41% 14% 13% 10% 724
5 4,27¢ 3,90¢ 4,55] 222 2006 03/25/36 CC 24% 21% 12% 12% 710
Total $ 25,69¢ $23,76: $ 27,97¢ $ 6,30¢

FNMA:

The unrealized losses in FNMA securities at Marth2913 consist of losses on nine FNMA securiflé® unrealized losses were caused by movementseirest rates. It is not anticipa
that these securities would be settled at a phiaeis less than the amortized cost of the Compainyestment. Each of these securities is perfagragtording to its terms and, in the opir
of management, will continue to perform accordingts terms. The Company does not have the inteselt these securities and it is more likely thahthe Company will not be requirec
sell the securities before recovery of the seasgitamortized cost basis. This conclusion is bagmsh considering the Compasy¢ash and working capital requirements, and cottahan:
regulatory obligations, none of which the Compaelidves would cause the sale of the securitieeréfbre, the Company did not consider these investsnto be other-thatemporarily
impaired at March 31, 2013.
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The following table details gross unrealized logge®rded in AOCI and the ending credit loss amaumndebt securities, as of March 31, 2013, for Whiee Company has recorded a ci
related OTTI charge in the Consolidated Statemefliscome:

Gross Unrealize
Losses Recorde  Ending Credi

(in thousands Amortized Cos Fair Value In AOCI Loss Amount
Private issued CMO®) $ 25,69¢ $ 23,76: $ 19371 $ 2,271
Trust preferred securitiéd 9,26 5,30¢ 3,957 3,73¢
Total $ 3496 $ 29,060 $ 589 $ 6,00¢
1) The Company has recorded OTTI charges in the Cinlaget! Statements of Income on five private issMO8 and two pooled trust preferred securities foicly a portion of th

OTTI is currently recorded in AOC

The following table represents the activity relatedhe credit loss component recognized in eamorgdebt securities held by the Company for whigiortion of OTTI was recognized
AOQCI for the period indicated:

For the three months ended

(in thousands) March 31, 201!
Beginning balanc $ 6,17¢
Recognition of actual loss: (169

OTTI charges due to credit loss recorded in eas -
Securities sold during the perir -
Securities where there is an intent to sell or ireguent to sell -
Ending balance $ 6,00¢

The following table details the amortized cost astimated fair value of the Company’s securitiessified as available for sale at March 31, 20%3;dntractual maturity. Expected
maturities will differ from contractual maturitiéecause borrowers may have the right to call quarebligations with or without call or prepaymeenalties.

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
(In thousands

Due in one year or les $ 2282: $ 22,82%
Due after one year through five ye 59,25¢ 62,08:
Due after five years through ten ye 49,774 51,11(
Due after ten years 102,92¢ 99,57¢

Total other securitie 234,78: 235,59
Mortgage-backed securities 739,35 764,70

Total securities available for sale $ 974,13¢ $ 1,000,29

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, eopa balance sheet restructuring, the Compatd/$88.5 million in mortgage-backed securities agebrded gross gains of $3.2
million and gross losses of $0.3 million. The C@mnyp did not sell any securities during the threeithe ended March 31, 2012.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s pdidgfof securities available for sale at DecemberZ12:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Fair Value Gains Losses
(In thousands

U.S. government agenci $ 31,40¢ $ 3151 $ 104 $ -
Corporate 83,38¢ 87,48¢ 4,09¢ -
Municipals 74,22¢ 75,297 1,152 83
Mutual funds 21,84: 21,84: - -
Other 17,797 13,31¢ 17 4,49¢
Total other securities 228,66t 229,45! 5,36¢ 4,582
REMIC and CMC 453,46¢ 474,05( 23,69( 3,10¢
GNMA 43,21 46,93: 3,721 -
FNMA 168,04( 175,92¢ 7,971 82
FHLMC 22,56: 23,20: 64C -
Total mortgage-backed securities 687,28: 720,11: 36,02 3,19(
Total securities available for sale $ 91594 $ 94956t $ 41,39 $ 7,772

Mortgage-backed securities shown in the table abostade two private issue CMOsthat are collateealiby commercial real estate mortgages with arrtired cost and market value of
$15.2 million and $15.7 million, respectively, ab@mber 31, 2012. The remaining private issuegagg-backed securities are backed by one-to-fonilyfaesidential mortgage loans.

The following table shows the Company’s availalolesale securities with gross unrealized lossedlagid fair value, aggregated by category and lengtime that individual securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss posiéibDecember 31, 2012.

Total Less than 12 montt 12 months or mor
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
(In thousands
Municipals $ 9,78 $ 83 $ 9,78:. $ 83 $ - 3% =
Other 5,06¢ 4,49¢ - - 5,064 4,49¢
Total other securities 14,84¢ 4,582 9,78: 83 5,064 4,49¢
REMIC and CMC 64,12¢ 3,10¢ 40,65: 15E 23,47" 2,952
FNMA 10,33: 82 10,33: 82 - -
Total mortgage-backed securities 74,45 3,19( 50,98 237 23,47t 2,95:¢
Total securities available for sale $ 89,30! $ 777 $ 60,76« $ 32C $ 28,53¢ $ 7,452

5. Loans

Loans are reported at their outstanding principddice, net of any unearned income, chaffe-deferred loan fees and costs on originataddcand unamortized premiums or discoun
purchased loans. Interest on loans is recognizeti@accrual basis. The accrual of income on leagenerally discontinued when certain factorshsag contractual delinquency of 90 ¢
or more, indicate reasonable doubt as to the tirellgctability of such income. Uncollected intdrpseviously recognized on naecrual loans is reversed from interest incoméetitme
the loan is placed on non-accrual status. A accrual loan can be returned to accrual status whetractual delinquency returns to less than 96 d&linquent. Subsequent cash payn
received on nomccrual loans that do not bring the loan to less t80 days delinquent are recorded on a cash I&disequent cash payments can also be applieddiratreduction
principal until all principal is recovered and thembsequently to interest, if in managemewuinion, it is evident that recovery of all piipal due is unlikely to occur. Net loan originat
costs and premiums or discounts on loans purchasedmortized into interest income over the contiedife of the loans using the levgleld method. Prepayment penalties receive
loans which pay in full prior to their scheduledtoréty are included in interest income in the pdrtbey are collected.
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The Company maintains an allowance for loan losgean amount, which, in managemenjidgment, is adequate to absorb probable estiirlasses inherent in the loan portfc
Managemens judgment in determining the adequacy of the alloee is based on evaluations of the collectabilitioans. This evaluation is inherently subjectias,it requires estimal
that are susceptible to significant revisions asearinformation becomes available. In assessingattefjuacy of the Company's allowance for loan lgssemagement considers vari
factors such as, the current fair value of colktéor collateral dependent loans, the Compangtolital loss experience, recent trends in loss#kgction policies and collection experier
trends in the volume of non-performing and claesifioans, changes in the composition and volunteefjross loan portfolio and local and nationalneeoic conditions. The Comparsy’
Board of Directors (the “Board of Directors”) rewie and approves management’s evaluation of theuadgopf the allowance for loan losses on a quarteakis.

The allowance for loan losses is established thratigrges to earnings in the form of a provisianldan losses. Increases and decreases in theaat@afor loan losses other than charge-
offs and recoveries are included in the provisionliéan losses. When a loan or a portion of a Isaetermined to be uncollectible, the portion deérancollectible is charged against
allowance and subsequent recoveries, if any, adited to the allowance.

The Company recognizes a loan as performing when the borrower has indicated the ilitatio bring the loan current, or due to otherccimstances which, in our opinion, indicate
borrower will be unable to bring the loan currerithin a reasonable time. All loans classified as-performing, which includes all loans past dued@9s or more, are classified as non-
accrual unless there is, in our opinion, compelkwigdence the borrower will bring the loan currénthe immediate future. Appraisals and/or updatgernal evaluations are obtainec
soon as practical and before the loan become 99 di@linquent. The loan balances of collateral dépehimpaired loans are compared to the lsamgdated fair value. The balance wi
exceeds fair value is generally chargefl- Management reviews the allowance for loarsésson a quarterly basis and records as a provis®ramount deemed appropriate, i
considering current year charge-offs, charge-etffidis, new loan production, current balance by @der loan categories and delinquent loans by @adar loan categories.

A loan is considered impaired when, based upomtbst current information, the Company believes jriobable that it will be unable to collect all@mts due, both principal and inter
according to the contractual terms of the loan.dimgal loans are measured based on the presentofatue expected future cash flows discounted @idhns effective interest rate, or at
loan’s observable market price, or the fair valfithe collateral if the loan is collateral depenténterest income on impaired loans is recorded eash basis. The Compasyhanageme
considers all non-accrual loans impaired.

The Company reviews each impaired loan to deterifiiaechargesff is to be recorded or if a valuation allowansead be allocated to the loan. The Company doeslimtate a valuatic
allowance to loans for which we have concludedcilmeent value of the underlying collateral will@l for recovery of the loan balance either throtiygh sale of the loan or by foreclos
and sale of the property.

The Company evaluates the underlying collateralugh a third party appraisal, or when a third pagpraisal is not available, the Company will usdrdgernal evaluation. The interi
evaluations are performed using an income approaehsales approach. The income approach is usedclame producing properties and uses currentmge® less operating expense
determine the net cash flow of the property. Omeertet cash flow is determined, the value of tlaperty is calculated using an appropriate cap#sbn rate for the property. The s¢
approach uses comparable sales prices in the maNde¢n an internal evaluation is used, we plaeatgr reliance on the income approach to valuedhateral.

In preparing internal evaluations of property valudae Company seeks to obtain current data osubfect property from various sources, includirig:the borrower; (2) copies of exist
leases; (3) local real estate brokers and appsié€r public records (such as for real estatestaral water and sewer charges); (5) comparable aalk rental data in the market; (6
inspection of the property; and (7) interviews wighants. These internal evaluations primarily foon the income approach and comparable salesadesdue the property.

As of March 31, 2013, the Company utilized recéindtparty appraisals of the collateral to measomgairment for $86.1 million, or 78.1%, of collaé¢dependent impaired loans and t
internal evaluations of the property’s value foA$2million, or 21.9%, of collateral dependent irinpel loans.

The Company may restructure a loan to enable aowerrto continue making payments when it is deetoebe in the Company’s best loterm interest. This restructure may incl

reducing the interest rate or amount of the monplalyment for a specified period of time, after vihike interest rate and repayment terms revehamtiginal terms of the loan. We clas
these loans as Troubled Debt Restructured (“TDRigmthe Bank grants a concession to a borrowerisverperiencing financial difficulties.
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These restructurings have not included a redudfgrincipal balance. The Company believes thatueguring these loans in this manner will allowtaé borrowers to become and ren
current on their loans. All loans classified as TBYe considered impaired, however TDR loans whietheen current for six consecutive months atithe they are restructured as T
remain on accrual status and are not included gsopaon-performing loans. Loans which were delieqt at the time they are restructured as a TDPlaeed on nomccrual status al
reported as noperforming loans until they have made timely paymedor six consecutive months. Loans that are wesired as TDR but are not performing in accordanith the
restructured terms are placed on non-accrual stattiseported as non-performing loans.

The allocation of a portion of the allowance foarolosses for a performing TDR loan is based upenpresent value of the future expected cash fidiesounted at the loas'origina
effective rate, or for a noperforming TDR which is collateral dependent, thie ¥alue of the collateral. At March 31, 2013,rthevere no commitments to lend additional fundsdoower:
whose loans were modified to a TDR. The modifiqaiid loans to a TDR did not have a significant efffen our operating results, nor did it requirégmnsicant allocation of the allowan
for loan losses.

The following table shows loans modified and clfisdias TDR during the three months ended Marct2813 and 2012:

For the three months ended For the three months ended
March 31, 201! March 31, 201:
(Dollars in thousands) Number Balance Modification description Number Balance Modification description
Multi-family residential 1 3 41% Received a below market interes - $ =
rate and the loan amortization we
extendec
Commercial real estate 1 27% Received a below market interes 1 1,38¢ Received a below market interest
rate and the loan amortization we rate, loan amortization term
extendec extended and loan term extenc
One-to-four family - mixed-use property - - 2 462 Received a below market interest
rate
Commercial business and other 1 61t Received a below market interes - -
rate and the loan term was exten
Total 3 % 1,301 3 $ 1,85(

The recorded investment of each of the loans mexdléind classified to a TDR, presented in the tabtare, was unchanged as there was no principalérgn any of these modifications.
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The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are performing ediog to their restructured terms at the periodciated:

March 31, 201! December 31, 201
Number Recorded Number Recorded
(Dollars in thousands of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia 9 $ 2,81¢ 8 $ 2,347
Commercial real esta 6 8,69¢ 5 8,49¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 7 2,32¢ 7 2,33¢
One-to-four family - residentia 1 372 1 374
Constructior 1 3,137 1 3,80¢
Commercial business and other 3 3,13¢ 2 2,54(
Total performing troubled debt restructured 27 % 20,48¢ 24 $ 19,90:
During the three months ended March 31, 2013, tvere no loans classified as TDR transferred toamrual status.
The following table shows our recorded investmentidans classified as TDR that are not perforngiagording to their restructured terms at the pariadicated:
March 31, 201! December 31, 201
. Number Recorded Number Recorded
(Dollars in thousands) of contracts investmen of contracts investmen
Multi-family residentia - % - 2 3 32z
Commercial real esta 2 2,987 2 3,07t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2 68€ 2 81¢€
Construction 1 7,29¢ 1 7,36¢
Total troubled debt restructurings that subseqyetefaulted 5 $ 10,97: 7 3% 11,58
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(Unaudited)
The following table shows our non-performing loatshe periods indicated:
March 31, December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Loans ninety days or more past due and still accruoig:
Multi-family residentia $ 1,07 $ -
Cc-operative apartmel 103 -
Commercial Business and other 602 644
Total 1,77¢ 644
Non-accrual mortgage loans:
Multi-family residentia 18,56¢ 13,09¢
Commercial real esta 13,81: 15,64(
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 10,52 16,55:
One-to-four family - residentia 13,547 13,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 16C 234
Construction 7,39¢ 7,69¢
Total 64,00¢ 66,94:
Non-accrual non-mortgage loans:
Small Business Administratic 45¢ 28:
Commercial Business and other 12,64( 16,86(
Total 13,09¢ 17,14:
Total non-accrual loans 77,10« 84,08¢
Total non-accrual loans and loans ninet\days or more past due and still accruing $ 78,88. $ 84,73(

The following is a summary of interest foregonenmm-accrual loans and loans classified as TDRHemperiods indicated:

For the three months ended

March 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands
Interest income that would have been recognizeditbans performein accordance with their original terr $ 2,20 $ 2,64¢
Less: Interest income included in the resultsperations 242 147
Total foregone interest $ 1,95¢ $ 2,49¢
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The following table shows an age analysis of oooréed investment in loans at March 31, 2013:

Greater
30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past

(in thousands) Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
Multi-family residentia $ 14,66¢ $ 287¢ $ 18,68¢ $ 36,23¢ $ 1,492,211 $ 1,528,35:
Commercial real esta 11,067 1,30¢ 13,81: 26,18¢ 481,74« 507,93:
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 22,99 2,292 10,13¢ 35,42: 580,23¢ 615,66
One-to-four family - residentia 4,067 70¢& 13,20¢ 17,98 179,28 197,26¢
Cc-operative apartmen - - 161 161 8,06( 8,221
Construction loan - - 7,39¢ 7,39¢ 3,55¢ 10,95:
Small Business Administratic 31 - 45¢ 48¢ 8,32 8,81:
Taxi medallion - - - - 8,771 8,771
Commercial business and other 62 1 11,45 11,51« 291,21: 302,72t

Total $ 52,89  $ 7,181 % 75,31C % 135,38° $ 3,053,31 $  3,188,70:
The following table shows an age analysis of ouoréed investment in loans at December 31, 2012:

Greater
30 - 59 Days 60 - 89 Days than Total Past
(in thousands) Past Due Past Due 90 Days Due Current Total Loans
(in thousands

Multi-family residentia $ 24,05¢ $ 4,82¢ 3% 13,098 $ 4198. $ 1,492,451 $ 1,534,43:
Commercial real esta 9,76¢ 3,622 15,63¢ 29,02¢ 486,41: 515,43t
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 21,01: 3,36¢ 16,55¢ 40,93¢ 596,41¢ 637,35
One-to-four family - residentia 3,407 2,01( 13,60: 19,01¢ 179,94¢ 198,96¢
Cc-operative apartmen - - 234 234 6,06¢ 6,302
Construction loan 2,462 - 7,69t 10,157 4,22¢ 14,38:
Small Business Administratic 404 - 282 687 8,80¢ 9,49¢
Taxi medallion - - - - 9,92 9,92
Commercial business and other 2 5 15,60: 15,60¢ 279,46 295,07t

Total $ 61,11 % 13,83 % 82,70  $ 157,64t  $ 3,063,720 $ 3,221,37!
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the three months endediviai, 2013:

(Unaudited)

One-tofour
family -  One-tofour Commercia

] Multi-family Commercie mixed-use family - Co-operativi Constructior Small Busines  Taxi  business ar

(in thousands) residentia real estatt  property residential apartment: loans  Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 13,00: % 5,70t $ 5,96( $ 1,99¢ $ 4€ $ 66 $ 50t $ 7$ 3,81t $§ 31,10«
Chargroff's 1,48¢ 681 2,60¢ 691 74 234 204 - 304 6,282
Recoveries 11 8C 53 31 - - 30 - - 20t
Provision 871 55€ 2,93¢ 73¢ 11€ 23t 14C - 411 6,00(

Ending balance $ 1239 $ 5,66( $ 6,34( $ 2077 $ 8¢ $ 67 $ 471 $ 7$ 3,92 $§ 31,021

Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaint $ 20¢ $ 32C $ 592 $ 6C $ -$ 37 $ -$ -$ 18C 1,39¢

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impaint $ 12,18t $ 5,34( $ 574¢ $ 2,017 $ 8¢ $ 30 % 471 $ 7$ 3,742 $ 29,62¢

Financing Receivables

Ending balance $ 1,528,35:$ 507,93 $ 61566:$ 197,26¢ $ 8,221 $ 10,95 $ 8,81z $ 8,771 $ 302,72t $3,188,70:

Ending balance: individually evaluated for impaimnt $ 26,09¢ $ 2554'$ 18,76:$ 1554t $ 2671 $ 10,22¢ $ 50t $ -$ 18,61{ $ 115,56:

Ending balance: collectively evaluated for impaint $ 1,502,25! $ 482,38 $ 596,89¢$ 181,72( $ 7,95¢ $ 72¢ $ 8,307 $ 8,771 $ 284,11 $3,073,13!
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The following table shows the activity in the allamce for loan losses for the year ended Decemhe&2(3P:

One-tofour
family - One-tofour Commercia
Multi-family Commercic  mixed-use  family - Co-operative Constructiol Small Busines Taxi business ar

(in thousands) residentia  realestatt  property  residential  apartment: loans Administratior medallior other Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning balanc $ 11260 $ 521C $ 5312 $ 1,64¢ $ 80 $ 66 $ 987 $ 41 $ 5,12¢ $ 30,34«
Charge-off's 6,01¢ 2,74¢ 4,28¢ 1,58: 62 4,591 324 - 1,661 21,26¢
Recoveries 144 307 35¢ 29 - - 87 - 104 1,02¢
Provision 7,60¢ 2,934 4,57¢ 1,904 28 3,98¢ (245) (34 244 21,00(

Ending balance $ 13,00 $ 570t $ 596( $ 1,99¢ $ 46 $ 66 $ 50 $ 7 % 3,81 $ 31,104

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment $ 18z $ 35¢ $ 571 $ 94 3 - 8 38 3 - 3 - 3 24 $ 1,49

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 12,81¢ $ 534t $ 538¢ $ 1,908 $ 46 $ 28 % 50t $ 7 $ 3,566 $ 29,61(

Financing Receivables:

Ending balance $ 153443 $ 51543t $ 637,35. $ 198,96¢ $ 6,30 $ 1438. % 9,49¢ $ 9,92: $ 295,07t $3,221,37

Ending balance: individually

evaluated for impairment $ 21678 $ 2352 $ 26,36¢ $ 1570: $ 237 $ 1423:. $ 85C $ - $ 26,020 $ 128,61(

Ending balance: collectively

evaluated for impairment $ 1512,76. $ 491,91 $ 610,98 $ 183,26t $ 6,06¢ $ 14 $ 8,646 $ 9,92 $ 269,05 $3,092,76!
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The following table shows our recorded investmanpaid principal balance and allocated allowancédan losses, average recorded investment anekgttencome recognized for loans
that were considered impaired at or for the threatimperiod ended March 31, 2013:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize(

(Dollars in thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 23,637 $ 26,898 $ - 0% 21,698 $ 47

Commercial real esta 18,87¢ 19,64« - 26,77 78

One-to-four family mixec-use propert 15,17¢ 17,537 19,11¢ 63

One-to-four family residentia 15,17¢ 19,22¢ - 15,25: 20

Cc-operative apartmen 267 403 - 252 2

Constructior 7,83t 12,48¢ - 9,217 -

Non-mortgage loans -

Small Business Administratic 50¢ 621 - 67¢ 1

Taxi Medallion - - - -

Commercial Business and other 13,43¢ 15,44 - 8,917 15
Total loans with no related allowance recorded 94,90« 112,25¢ - 101,89¢ 22€

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 2,457 2,45¢ 20¢ 2,19( 36
Commercial real esta 6,67( 6,73¢ 32C 7,222 69
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,581 3,58¢ 592 3,451 55
One-to-four family residentia 372 372 60 378 4
Cc-operative apartmen - - - -

Constructior 3,137 3,137 37 3,471 28

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - R
Taxi Medallion - - - -

Commercial Business and other 4,43¢ 4,43¢ 18C 3,48¢ 52
Total loans with an allowance recorded 20,65¢ 20,72t 1,39¢ 20,19¢ 244
Total Impaired Loans
Total mortgage loans $ 97,18t  $ 112,48:  $ 1,218 $ 109,01 $ 40z
Total non-mortgage loans $ 18,378 $ 20,49¢ % 18C  $ 13,07¢ % 68
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The following table shows our recorded investmenpaid principal balance and allocated allowancddan losses, average recorded investment ancegitencome recognized for lo:
that were considered impaired at or for the yededrDecember 31, 2012:

Unpaid Average Interest
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmen Recognize(

(Dollars in thousands
With no related allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia $ 19,75  $ 2288¢ $ - 0% 27,72 $ 42¢
Commercial real esta 34,67: 38,59 - 43,97¢ 53¢
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 23,054 25,82 - 27,01¢ 48t
One-to-four family residentia 15,32¢ 18,99¢ - 15,047 18€
Cc-operative apartmen 237 29¢ - 174 2
Constructior 10,59¢ 15,18: - 14,68¢ 172
Non-mortgage loans

Small Business Administratic 85C 1,07¢ - 1,042 25
Taxi Medallion - - - - -
Commercial Business and other 4,391 5,741 - 5,102 53

Total loans with no related allowance recorded 108,88 128,60( - 134,76¢ 1,88¢

With an allowance recorde
Mortgage loans

Multi-family residentia 1,922 1,937 182 3,17« 124
Commercial real esta 7,77 7,83¢ 35¢ 6,53( 40C
One-to-four family mixec-use propert 3,31« 3,31 571 4,38t 20E
One-to-four family residentia 374 374 94 18¢ 19
Cc-operative apartmen - - - 101 -
Constructior 3,80¢ 3,80¢ 38 4,27¢ 14C

Non-mortgage loans
Small Business Administratic - - - R R
Taxi Medallion - o - - -

Commercial Business and other 2,53¢ 2,54( 24¢ 2,27: 11€
Total loans with an allowance recorded 19,727 19,80¢ 1,49¢ 20,92¢ 1,004
Total Impaired Loans
Total mortgage loans $ 120,83( $ 139,05. $ 1,248  $ 147270 $ 2,69¢
Total non-mortgage loans $ 7,78C  $ 9,35¢ % 24¢ % 8411 % 194

In accordance with our policy and the current ratarly guidelines, we designate loans as “Specialtie,” which are considered “Criticized Loans, dfSubstandard,” “Doubtful,” or
“Loss,” which are considered “Classified Loansf.alloan does not fall within one of the previousntioned categories then the loan would be corsiti#?ass.” We designate a loan as
Substandard when a well-defined weakness is idedtihat jeopardizes the orderly liquidation of tebt. We designate a loan Doubtful when it displdne inherent weakness of a
Substandard loan with the added provision thaectiin of the debt in full, on the basis of exigtfacts, is highly improbable. We designate a lashoss if it is deemed the debtor is
incapable of repayment. Loans that are desigresedass are charged to the Allowance for Loan Ladseans that are non-accrual are designated agautard, Doubtful or Loss. We
designate a loan as Special Mention if the asset dot warrant classification within one of theestblassifications, but does contain a potentiakmess that deserves closer attention.
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The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassifieMarch 31, 2013:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandaréd) Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 11,15 $ 23,69C $ - $ - $ 34,84
Commercial real esta 8,60( 25,54¢ - - 34,14¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 11,81 17,03¢ - - 28,85:
One-to-four family - residentia 2,84z 15,17¢ - - 18,01¢
Cc-operative apartmen - 267 - - 267
Construction loan 3,137 7,83¢ - - 10,97:
Small Business Administratic 22¢€ 141 - - 367
Commercial business and other 2,22¢ 14,79: 1,08( - 18,10(
Total loans $ 39,99¢ $ 104,48: $ 1,08 $ - $ 145,56

The following table sets forth the recorded investirin loans designated as Criticized or ClassiéieBecember 31, 2012:

(In thousands) Special Mentio  Substandaréh Doubtful Loss Total
Multi-family residentia $ 16,348 $ 19,327 $ - $ - $ 35,67:
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,877 - - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,10+ 24,63t - - 37,73¢
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22 15,32¢ - - 20,55
Cc-operative apartmen 102 237 - - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - - 14,40:¢
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 21z 244 - 77¢
Commercial business and other 3,04 18,41¢ 1,08( - 22,54:

Total loans $ 53,04 $ 116,63. $ 1,32¢  $ - % 171,00:
1) The tables above do not include $9.9 million an@$billion of Substandard loans held for sale atéhe31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respecti

The following table shows the changes in the alloweafor loan losses for the periods indicated:

For the three months
ended March 3

(In thousands) 2013 2012

Balance, beginning of peric $ 31,10¢ $ 30,34+
Provision for loan losse 6,00( 6,00(
Chargeoff's (6,282 (6,019
Recoveries 20t 298

Balance, end of period

$ 31,027 $ 30,61¢
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The following table shows net loan charge-offstfa periods indicated:
Three Months Ende
March 31, March 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Multi-family residentia $ 1477 $ 1,004
Commercial real esta 601 1,71C
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 2,552 1,417
One-to-four family - residential 66C 82E
Cc-operative apartmen 74 42
Constructior 234 234
Small Business Administratic 174 104
Commercial business and other 304 39E

Total net loan charge-offs $ 6,077 $ 5,72¢

Commitments to extend credit (principally real éstaortgage loans) and lines of credit (princip&lbme equity lines of credit and business linereflit) amounted to $54.7 million
$138.9 million, respectively, at March 31, 2013.

o)}

6. Loans held for sale
Loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cogstimated fair value.

The following table shows our Loans held for salethe periods indicated:

March 31, 201! December 31, 201
Number Carrying Number Carrying

(Dollars in thousands of loans Value of loans Value
Multi-family residentia 6 $ 2,89: 4 $ 3,44:
Commercial real esta 4 97C - -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 25 5,90¢€ 4 1,871
One-to-four family - residentia 2 13¢ - -

Total 37 $ 9,901 8 $ 5,312

The Company has implemented a strategy of seliémgin delinquent and non-performing loans. OneeGbmpany has decided to sell a loan, the saldlysl@ses in a short period of
time, generally within the same quarter. Loansgieged held for sale are reclassified from loagisl ffior investment to loans held for sale. Termsaidé include cash due upon the closing
of the sale, no contingencies or recourse to thegamy and servicing is released to the buyer.
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The following table shows delinquent and non-perfioig loans sold during the period indicated:

(Dollars in thousands)

For the three months ended
March 31, 201!

Loans solc Proceed: Net charg-offs  Net gain (loss

Multi-family residentia 6 $ 461z $ (109 $ 6
Commercial real esta 2 1,11¢ (76) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 6 2,37 (40) (15)
Commercial business and other 2 66 (185) -

Total 16 $ 8,16€ $ (410 $ 9
The following table shows delinquent and non-perfiaig loans sold during the period indicated:

For the three months ended
March 31, 201:

(Dollars in thousands) Loans solc Proceed: Net charg-offs  Net gain (loss
Multi-family residentia 6 $ 3,96¢ $ (181 $ =
Commercial real esta 3 1,67¢ (250) -
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 4 1,28( (399 -
Constructior 3 2,54( (57) -
Commercial business and other 1 21¢ (13¢€) =

Total 17 $ 9,681 $ (1,02) $ -
7. Other Real Estate Ownec

The following are changes in Other Real Estate @W®REQO”) during the periods indicated:

Balance at beginning of peric
Acquisitions

Write-down of carrying valur
Sales

Balance at end of period
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The following table shows the gross gains, grossde and write-downs of OREO reported in the Cagesteld Statements of Income during the periodsatdd:

For the three months ended

March 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands

Gross gain: $ 201 % 45
Gross losse (23) (110
Write-down of carrying value (65) (88)

Total $ 112 $ (15%)
8. Stock-Based Compensatior

For the three months ended March 31, 2013 and 28&2Company’s net income, as reported, include8 #gllion and $1.4 million, respectively, of steblased compensation costs
$0.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively, of mme tax benefits related to the stock-based conapiensplans.

The Company estimates the fair value of stock otiasing the Blackscholes valuation model. Key assumptions usedtimate the fair value of stock options include éxercise price «
the award, the expected option term, the expectdatility of the Company’s stock price, the risleér interest rate over the optioretpected term and the annual dividend yield.
Company uses the fair value of the common stoctherdate of award to measure compensation cosestricted stock unit awards. Compensation costdsgnized over the vesting per
of the award using the straight line method. Duting three months ended March 31, 2013 and 20&2Ctdmpany granted 230,675 and 230,675 restrictaxk siits, respectively. The
were no stock options granted during the three howaenhded March 31, 2013 and 2012.

The 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (“Omnibus Plargfame effective on May 17, 2005 after approvahigystockholders. The Omnibus Plan authorizes tirag@nsation Committee of 1
Company’s Board of Directors (the “Compensation @uttee”) to grant a variety of equity compensatawards as well as longrm and annual cash incentive awards, all of whanh b
structured so as to comply with Section 162(m)hef internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended litherfial Revenue Code”Pn May 17, 2011, stockholders of the Company apgn
an amendment to the Omnibus Plan authorizing aitienal 625,000 shares for use for full value avearis of March 31, 2013, there were 340,125 shavagable for full value awards a
56,440 shares available for nauil value awards. To satisfy stock option exersise fund restricted stock and restricted stock awiards, shares are issued from treasury stoekaifable
otherwise new shares are issued. The Companynailhtain separate pools of available shares féwvalle as opposed to ndaH value awards, except that shares can be ménoed the
non-full value pool to the full value pool on a &l basis. The exercise price per share of a stotkrogrant may not be less than the fair market@af the common stock of 1
Company, as defined in the Omnibus Plan, on the dhgrant and may not be re-priced without therapgl of the Companyg stockholders. Options, stock appreciation rigtestricte
stock, restricted stock units and other stock baseatds granted under the Omnibus Plan are gepesrdiject to a minimum vesting period of three gaaith stock options having a }@ai
contractual term. Other awards do not have a cotahterm of expiration. Restricted stock unit adgainclude participants who have reached or argecto reaching retirement eligibili
at which time such awards fully vest. These amoargsncluded in stock-based compensation expense.

Full Value AwardsThe first pool is available for full value awardsich as restricted stock unit awards. The poolleldecreased by the number of shares grantedl &slfie awards. Tt
pool will be increased from time to time by: (1pthumber of shares that are returned to or retdiggie Company as a result of the cancellatiopiration, forfeiture or other terminati
of a full value award (under the Omnibus Plan); tt® settlement of such an award in cash; (3) #ety to the award holder of fewer shares thanribmber underlying the awa
including shares which are withheld from full valaeards; or (4) the surrender of shares by an atvaldkr in payment of the exercise price or taxéh vespect to a full value award. 1
Omnibus Plan will allow the Company to transferrsisfrom the non-full value pool to the full valpeol on a 3-fort basis, but does not allow the transfer of shixces the full value poc
to the non-full value pool.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s fallue awards at or for the three months ended Mat¢ci2013:

WeightedAverage

Grant-Date

Full Value Awards Shares Fair Value
Non-vested at December 31, 2C 318,05. $ 13.3¢
Grantec 243,64! 15.2¢
Vested (175,481) 14.1¢
Forfeited - -
Non-vested at March 31, 2013 386,21( $ 14.1¢
Vested but unissued at March 31, 2013 232,39" $ 14.2¢

As of March 31, 2013, there was $5.0 million ofatainrecognized compensation cost related to nstedeull value awards granted under the Omnibas.Prhat cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 3asyeThe total fair value of awards vested forttitee months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 weveri#lion and $1.9 million,
respectively. The vested but unissued full valwearas consist of awards made to employees andtdiseewho are eligible for retirement. Accordingtie terms of the Omnibus Plan, these
employees and directors have no risk of forfeituFaese shares will be issued at the original emtwial vesting dates.

Nor-Full Value Awards: The second pool is available for nfuit value awards, such as stock options. The pabblbe increased from time to time by the numbesloares that are returr
to or retained by the Company as a result of timeaéation, expiration, forfeiture or other termtiioa of a nonfull value award (under the Omnibus Plan or the6l8fbck Option Incenti
Plan). The second pool will not be replenishedshgres withheld or surrendered in payment of tlezoise price or taxes, retained by the Company resut of the delivery to the aw:
holder of fewer shares than the number underlytiegatvard or the settlement of the award in cash.

The following table summarizes certain informatregarding the non-full value awards, all of whidvk been granted as stock options, at or for ttee timonths ended March 31, 2013:

Weighted- WeightedAverage Aggregate

Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Non-Full Value Awards Shares Price Term $(000) *
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 770,35¢ % 15.9:
Grantec - -
Exercisec (52,32() 12.62
Forfeited - -
Outstanding at March 31, 2013 718,03¢ $ 16.1¢ 28 $ 1,014
Exercisable shares at March 31, 2013 680,09' $ 16.3¢ 27 $ 824
Vested but unexercisable shares at March 31, 2013 1456C $ 13.2¢ 56 $ 69

* The intrinsic value of a stock option is the éiftnce between the market value of the underlytmgksand the exercise price of the option.
As of March 31, 2013, there was $23,000 of totaleoognized compensation cost related to unvestaduliovalue awards granted under the Omnibus Pldrat Tost is expected to

recognized over a weighted-average period of OasyeThe vested but unexercisable fdhvalue awards were made to employees who agetd for retirement. According to the ter
of the Omnibus Plan, these employees have no fikfeiture. These awards will be exercisabléhatoriginal contractual vesting dates.
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Cash proceeds, fair value received, tax benefiistla intrinsic value related to stock options eis&d during the three months ended March 31, 20832012 are provided in the follow
table:

For the three months ended

March 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Proceeds from stock options exerci: $ 22 % 244
Fair value of shares received upon exercised aksiptions 637 54¢
Tax benefit related to stock options exerci 53 24
Intrinsic value of stock options exercis 174 114

Phantom Stock PlarThe Company maintains a ngualified phantom stock plan as a supplement tpritéit sharing plan for officers who have achievkd level of Senior Vice Presidi
and above and completed one year of service. Hemwefficers who had achieved at least the leveVioe President and completed one year of servim@ o January 1, 2009 rem:;
eligible to participate in the phantom stock plakwards are made under this plan on certain congimsnot eligible for awards made under the prslfiaring plan, due to the terms of
profit sharing plan and the Internal Revenue Céatteployees receive awards under this plan propateto the amount they would have received undepthfit sharing plan, but for limi
imposed by the profit sharing plan and the InteRevenue Code. The awards are made as cash aaadd$ien converted to common stock equivalentsnfphashares) at the then cur
market value of the Company’s common stock. Dividieare credited to each employeatcount in the form of additional phantom shash time the Company pays a dividend o
common stock. In the event of a change of conasidefined in this plan), an employgaiterest is converted to a fixed dollar amoumnt deemed to be invested in the same manner as
her interest in the Savings Bank’s ngualified deferred compensation plan. Employees weder this plan 20% per year for 5 years. Empsy@so become 100% vested upon a char
control. Employees receive their vested intereshia plan in the form of a cash lump sum paymeninstallments, as elected by the employee, aéianination of employment. T
Company adjusts its liability under this plan te fair value of the shares at the end of each gerio

The following table summarizes the Phantom Stoek Rl or for the three months ended March 31, 2013:

Phantom Stock Plan Shares Fair Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 50,067 $ 15.3¢
Grantec 8,58¢ 15.57
Forfeited = =
Distributions (13) 15.8¢
Outstanding at March 31, 2013 58,64: $ 16.94
Vested at March 31, 2013 58,31 $ 16.94

The Company recorded stock-based compensation sefenthe Phantom Stock Plan of $99,000 and $8Z@0the three months ended March 31, 2013 an@ 2@kspectively. The total
fair value of the distributions from the Phantoroct Plan was $1,000 for each of the three montiogerended March 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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9. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans
The following table sets forth information regamlithe components of net expense for the pensiormtred postretirement benefit plans.

Three months ended

March 31,
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Employee Pension Pla
Interest cos $ 207 % 22C
Amortization of unrecognized lo! 30¢€ 262
Expected return on plan assets (315 (319
Net employee pension expense $ 19¢  $ 172
Outside Director Pension Ple
Service cos $ 21 % 20
Interest cos 24 28
Amortization of unrecognized ga 9) @)
Amortization of past service liability 9 9
Net outside director pension expense $ 45 $ 50
Other Postretirement Benefit Plai
Service cos $ 11z $ 10C
Interest cos 55 54
Amortization of unrecognized lo! 12 10
Amortization of past service credit (20 (21)
Net other postretirement expense $ 15¢  $ 14%

The Company previously disclosed in its Consolida@ancial Statements for the year ended Dece®bef012 that it expects to contribute $0.8 milltonthe Companyg Employe
Pension Plan (the “Employee Pension Plan”) and $llibn to each of the Outside Director PensioarP(the “Outside Director Pension Plaaf)d the other post retirement benefit p
(the “Other Postretirement Benefit Pland)ring the year ending December 31, 2013. As ofdd&1, 2013, the Company has contributed $159,0@0et Employee Pension Plan, $22,
to the Outside Director Pension Plan and $13,0a8ddther Postretirement Benefit Plans. As of Ma&t, 2013, the Company has not revised its exgegntributions for the year endi
December 31, 2012.

10. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company carries certain financial assets arahfiial liabilities at fair value in accordancelwKSC Topic 825, “Financial Instruments” (“ASC To825") and values those financial
assets and financial liabilities in accordance W8C Topic 820, “Fair Value Measurements and Disates” (“ASC Topic 820"). ASC Topic 820 defined fealue as the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfiebdity in an orderly transaction between marfatticipants at the measurement date, establisfrasn@work for measuring fair value and
expands disclosures about fair value measurem&8€& Topic 825 permits entities to choose to measuainy financial instruments and certain other statfair value. At March 31, 2013,
the Company carried financial assets and finadieiilities under the fair value option with faialues of $47.9 million and $24.7 million, respeetix At December 31, 2012, the Company
carried financial assets and financial liabilitiesder the fair value option with fair values of #4nillion and $23.9 million, respectively. Duritige three months ended March 31, 2013 and
2012, the Company did not elect to carry any adidi financial assets or financial liabilities undee fair value option. During the three monthdeshMarch 31, 2013, the Company sold
financial assets carried under the fair value optagaling $4.4 million. The Company did not s&lly financial assets during the three months eifEdh 31, 2012.
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The following table presents the financial assets fenancial liabilities reported at fair value wrdhe fair value option, and the changes in falug included in the Consolidated Stater
of Income — Net gain (loss) from fair value adjustits, at or for the periods ended as indicated:

Fair Value Fair Value  Changes in Fair Values For Items Measured at Faliné

Measuremen Measuremen Pursuant to Election of the Fair Value Opt

at March 31, at December 3 Three Months Ende
(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012 March 31, 201 March 31, 201:
Mortgage-backed securitie $ 17,96 $ 24,91: $ (362) $ (18
Other securitie 29,93 29,577 272 241
Borrowed funds 24,74 23,92: (819 171
Net gain from fair value adjustmer® $ (90¢) $ 394
1) The net gain (loss) from fair value adjustmentsenged in the above table does not include nesg#if0.8 million and losses of $0.8 million foetthree months ended March

2013 and 2012, respectively, from the change iffdhlievalue of interest rate caps / swe

Included in the fair value of the financial assatsl financial liabilities selected for the fair valoption is the accrued interest receivable oapkeyfor the related instrument. One po
trust preferred security is over 90 days past cwkthe Company has stopped accruing interest. Tdmp@ny continues to accrue on the remaining firdrinstruments and reports,
interest income or interest expense in the Conataitl Statement of Income, the interest receivabjgapable on the financial instruments selectedHerfair value option at their respec
contractual rates.

The borrowed funds had a contractual principal amhad $61.9 million at March 31, 2013 and DecemBgy 2012. The fair value of borrowed funds incleidecrued interest payable
$0.4 million at March 31, 2013 and December 31,201

The Company generally holds its earning assetgrditan securities available for sale, to matuaitg settles its liabilities at maturity. Howevaairfvalue estimates are made at a spe
point in time and are based on relevant marketimédion. These estimates do not reflect any prenvumiiscount that could result from offering folesat one time the Comparsyéntire
holdings of a particular instrument. Accordinglg, assumptions change, such as interest rates epdypnents, fair value estimates change and thesarasoimay not necessarily be reali
in an immediate sale.

Disclosure of fair value does not require fair waloformation for items that do not meet the déifimi of a financial instrument or certain otherdfirtial instruments specifically excluc
from its requirements. These items include coreodi¢fintangibles and other customer relationstppsmises and equipment, leases, income taxes)deegtproperties and equity.

Further, fair value disclosure does not attemptdlue future income or business. These items mamdierial and accordingly, the fair value informatipresented does not purpor
represent, nor should it be construed to represfemtinderlying “market” or franchise value of thempany.

Financial assets and financial liabilities reporéedair value are required to be measured basegitber: (1) quoted prices in active markets faniical financial instruments (Level 1);
significant other observable inputs (Level 2); 8 gignificant unobservable inputs (Level 3).

A description of the methods and significant asstiong utilized in estimating the fair value of ti®mpanys assets and liabilities that are carried at falue on a recurring basis are
follows:

Level 1 —where quoted market prices are available in avectiarket. The Company did not value any of itetssr liabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis as Level :
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Level 2 —when guoted market prices are not available, falue is estimated using quoted market prices foilai financial instruments and adjusted for diéleces between the quo
instrument and the instrument being valued. Faluer can also be estimated by using pricing modeldjscounted cash flows. Pricing models prinyaue markebased or independen
sourced market parameters as inputs, includingnbutimited to, yield curves, interest rates, égair debt prices and credit spreads. In additiopobservable market information, moc
also incorporate maturity and cash flow assumptiédvarch 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, LeviekcRudes mortgage related securities, mutual fundgjorate debt and interest |
caps/swaps.

-30-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Level 3 —when there is limited activity or less transpareaoyund inputs to the valuation, financial instruntseare classified as Level 3. At March 31, 2048 Becember 31, 2012, Leve
includes REMIC and CMO securities, municipal setesiand trust preferred securities owned by anibjsubordinated debentures issued by the Company.

The methods described above may produce fair vahatsnay not be indicative of net realizable vadneeflective of future fair values. While the Cpany believes its valuation metht
are appropriate and consistent with those of atieaket participants, the use of different methodis, assumptions and models to determine fairvaficertain financial instruments co
produce different estimates of fair value at thgoréing date.

The following table sets forth the assets and liteds that are carried at fair value on a recgrbasis and the method that was used to determéieftir value, at March 31, 2013 ¢
December 31, 2012:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Assets:
Mortgag¢backecSecurities $ - 0% - $ 74094( $ 696,63t $ 23,76. $ 23478 $ 764,70 $ 720,11:
Other securitie - - 218,78¢ 213,37« 16,80¢ 16,07¢ 235,59¢ 229,45:
Interest rate car - - 16 19 - - 16 19
Interest rate swaps - - 51 3 - - 51 3
Total assets $ - % - $ 959,79F $ 910,03 $ 40,56¢  $ 39,55« $ 1,000,36. $ 949,58t
Liabilities:
Liabilities:
Borrowings $ - 0% - $ - $ - % 24,74. $ 2392: $ 24,74. $ 23,92
Interest rate swaps - - 1,13¢ 1,922 - - 1,13¢ 1,922
Total liabilities $ - % - % 1,138 $ 1,92: $  2474. $  2392. $ 2588( $ 2584«
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The following table sets forth the Company's asaptkliabilities that are carried at fair valuearecurring basis, classified within Level 3 of treuation hierarchy for the period indicated:

For the three months ended
March 31, 201!
REMIC and Trust preferre  Junior subordinate
CMO Municipals securities debenture:
(In thousands

Beginning balanc $ 23,47F  $ 9,42¢ $ 6,65( $ 23,92:
Transfer into Level . - - - -
Net gain from fair value adjustmeof financial asset - - 247 -
Net loss from fair valuadjustment of financial liabilitie - - - 81¢
Increase in accrued interest paye - - - 1
Change in unrealized gains (losses) included ieratbmprehensive income 28€ (51) 53C -
Ending balance $ 23,767 $ 9,37¢ $ 7427 $ 24,74:
Changes in unrealized held at period end $ 28¢ $ (51) $ 53C $ -

The following table presents the quantitative infation about recurring Level 3 fair value of finaiénstruments and the fair value measurements darch 31, 2013:

March 31, 2013 Fair Value Valuation Technigue Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average)
(Dollars in thousands
Assets:
Spread to inde 2.4%-4.1% (3.3%)
REMIC and CMC $ 23,76. Discounted cash flown Average Life (years 44-76 (5.6)
Municipals $ 9,37¢ Discounted cash flown Discount rate 0.4%-4.0% (3.6%)
Discount rate 8.0%- 16.9% (11.9%)
Prepayment assumptio 0% - 73.0% (45.6%)
Trust Preferred Securiti¢ $ 7,427 Discounted cash flown Defaults 0%- 10.3% (7.6%)
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debentu $ 24,74; Discounted cash flown Discount rate 8.0%-8.0% (8.0%)

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the CompanREMIC and CMO securities valued under Level 3theespread to an index and the average |i
the security. Significant increases or decreaseglier of those inputs in isolation would resalti significantly lower or higher fair value mea=sment.

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevfalue measurement of the Company’s municipal rseesi valued under Level 3 are the securitiefééctive yield. Significant increases
decreases in the effective yield in isolation wonddult in a significantly lower or higher fair v@ measurement.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the yalue measurement of the Company’s trust predesexurities valued under Level 3 are the secstipeepayment assumptions
default rate. Significant increases or decreasesynof the inputs in isolation would result inigrsficantly lower or higher fair value measurement
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The significant unobservable inputs used in thevialue measurement of the Companyinior subordinated Debentures are effectivedyiBignificant increases or decreases in the éffe
yield in isolation would result in a significantlgwer or higher fair value measureme

The following table sets forth the Company’s astds are carried at fair value on a non-recurkingis and the method that was used to determiiefairevalue, at March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

Quoted Prices

in Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other
for Identical Assets Observable Inputs Unobservable Inputs Total carried at fair value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) on a recurring bas
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Assets:

Loans held for sal $ - % - $ - $ - 0% 9,907 $ 531: $ 9,907 $ 5,312
Impaired loan: - - - - 39,68¢ 49,70% 39,68¢ 49,70%
Other real estate owned - - - - 2,18¢ 5,27¢ 2,18¢ 5,27¢
Total assets $ -8 -8 -8 - $ 51,78 $ 60,29 $ 51,78 $ 60,29

The following table presents the quantitative infation about non-recurring Level 3 fair value aifdincial instruments and the fair value measurenantg March 31, 2013:

March 31, 2013 Fair Value Valuation Technique Unobservable Input Range (Weighted Average)
(Dollars in thousands

Assets:

Loans held for sal $ 9,907 Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 3.8%-45.9% (26.7%

Impaired loan: $ 39,68¢ Fair value of collaterz Loss severity discout 0.2%-90.7% (26.8%

Other real estate ownt $ 2,18¢ Fair value of collatere Loss severity discout 0.0%-80.7% (25.3%

The Company carries its Loans held for sale and OREthe expected sales price less selling costs.
The Company carries its impaired collateral depahtiens at 85% of the appraised or internallynested value of the underlying property.
The Company did not have any liabilities that weaeried at fair value on a non-recurring basis at®¥t 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

The estimated fair value of each material clasnaicial instruments at March 31, 2013 and Decem3ie 2012 and the related methods and assumpiiets to estimate fair value are
follows:

Cash and Due from Banks, Overnight Interest-EarningDeposits and Federal Funds Sold:

The fair values of financial instruments that drersterm or reprice frequently and have littlenorrisk are considered to have a fair value thpt@pmates carrying value (Level 1).
FHLB-NY stock:

The fair value is based upon the par value of thekswhich equals its carrying value (Level 2).

Securities Available for Sale:

The estimated fair values of securities availabteshle are contained in Note 6 of the Notes tosBhitlated Financial Statements. Fair value is baget quoted market prices (Level 1

input), where available. If a quoted market pre@at available, fair value is estimated using gdaharket prices for similar securities and adpi$te differences between the quoted
instrument and the instrument being valued (Levielp2it). When there is limited activity or lessrisparency around inputs to the valuation, secaritre valued using (Level 3 input).
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Loans held for sale:
The fair value of non-performing loans held foresal estimated through bids received on the loadsas such, are classified as a Level 3 input.
Loans:

The estimated fair value of loans is estimated isgalinting the expected future cash flows usingdinmeent rates at which similar loans would be maxborrowers with similar crec
ratings and remaining maturities (Level 3 input).

For non-accruing loans, fair value is generallyneated by discounting managemengéstimate of future cash flows with a discoun¢ rammensurate with the risk associated with
assets or for collateral dependent loans 85% oéfipeaised or internally estimated value of thepprty (Level 3 input).

Due to Depositors:

The fair values of demand, passbook savings, NOWhay market deposits and escrow deposits are, fiyitém, equal to the amount payable on demanthatreporting dates (i.e. th
carrying value) (Level 1). The fair value of fixedaturity certificates of deposits are estimatediisgounting the expected future cash flows usiregréties currently offered for deposit:
similar remaining maturities (Level 2 input).

Borrowings:

The estimated fair value of borrowings are estighdte discounting the contractual cash flows usirtgrest rates in effect for borrowings with simifaaturities and collateral requireme
(Level 2 input) or using a market-standard modehg! 3 input).

Interest Rate Caps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate capsged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Interest Rate Swaps:

The estimated fair value of interest rate swaaged upon broker quotes (Level 2 input).
Other Real Estate Owned:

OREO are carried at fair value less selling co3tse fair value is based on appraised value thr@ughrrent appraisal, or sometimes through annataeview, additionally adjusted by
estimated costs to sell the property (Level 3 ihput

Other Financial Instruments:

The fair values of commitments to sell, lend orrbar are estimated using the fees currently chaoyguhid to enter into similar agreements, takirtg imccount the remaining terms of
agreements and the present creditworthiness afaheterparties or on the estimated cost to terraittem or otherwise settle with the counterpastebe reporting date. For fixedte loal
commitments to sell, lend or borrow, fair valuesoatonsider the difference between current levielsterest rates and committed rates (where appkja

At March 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair values ofdbeve financial instruments approximate the reabataounts of the related fees and were not coresiderbe material.
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouamsl estimated fair values of selected financistriments based on the assumptions described akedeby the Company in estimating
fair value at March 31, 2013:

March 31, 201!

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 46,04¢ $ 46,04¢ $ 46,04¢ $ - $ -
Mortgag¢«backecSecurities 764,70 764,70 - 740,94( 23,76:
Other securitie 235,59 235,59¢ - 218,78¢ 16,80¢
Loans held for sal 9,907 9,907 - - 9,907
Loans 3,201,19° 3,365,48I - - 3,365,48!
FHLB-NY stock 38,68¢ 38,68¢ - 38,68¢ -
Interest rate car 16 16 - 16 -
Interest rate sway 51 51 - 51 -
OREO 2,18¢ 2,18¢ - - 2,18¢
Total assets $ 429838 $ 446267 $ 46,04¢ $ 998,48: $ 3,418,14
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,106,65: 3,141,260 $ 1,905,740 $ 1,23552 $ -
Borrowings 868,36« 905,98: - 882,06: 23,92:
Interest rate swaps 1,13¢ 1,13¢ - 1,13¢ -
Total liabilities $ 397615 $ 404839 $ 190574 $ 2,11872. $ 23,92:
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The following table sets forth the carrying amouatsl estimated fair values of selected financisfrirments based on the assumptions described aisedeby the Company in estimal
fair value at December 31, 2012:

December 31, 201

Carrying Fair
Amount Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in thousands
Assets:
Cash and due from ban $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ 40,428 $ - $ -
Mortgag¢«backecSecurities 720,11: 720,11 - 696,63¢ 23,47¢
Other securitie 229,45 229,45! - 213,37« 16,07¢
Loans held for sal 5,31 5,31 - - 5,31
Loans 3,234,12 3,416,31: - - 3,416,31.
FHLB-NY stock 42,337 42,33 - 42,33 -
Interest rate car 19 19 - 19 -
Interest rate sway 3 3 - 3 -
OREO 5,27¢ 5,27¢ - - 5,27¢
Total assets $ 4,277,060 $ 4,45925 % 40,428  $ 952,37 $ 3,466,45!
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 3,015,19: 3,057,15. $ 1,761,960 $ 1,29518 $ -
Borrowings 948,40! 992,06¢ - 968,14° 23,92
Interest rate swaps 1,922 1,92 - 1,92 -
Total liabilities $ 3965520 $ 4051,14 $ 176196 $ 2,26525 $ 23,92:
11. Derivative Financial Instruments

At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Cowigaderivative financial instruments consist of paséd options and swaps. The purchased optionssagt to mitigate tt
Company’s exposure to rising interest rates ofirigmcial liabilities without stated maturities. & Company’s swaps are used to mitigate the Compamyosure to rising interest rates
portion ($18.0 million) of its floating rate junicubordinated debentures that have a contractlizé vd $61.9 million. Additionally, the Company @nes may use swaps to mitigate
Company’s exposure to rising interest rates ofixesl rate loans.

At March 31, 2013, derivatives with a combined aonél amount of $118.0 million are not designatetiedges and a derivative with a notional amour4o8 million is designated as a -
value hedge. Changes in the fair value of the dévigs not designated as hedges are reflected ét fdés from fair value adjustmentst the Consolidated Statements of Income.
portions of the changes in the fair value of thewd¢ive designated as a fair value hedge whichoissidered ineffective are reflected in “Net lossnf fair value adjustmentsh the
Consolidated Statements of Income.
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The following table sets forth information regamglithe Company’s derivative financial instrumentMatrch 31, 2013:

March 31, 201!
Notional Net Carrying
Amount Purchase Pric Value

(In thousands

Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03t $ 16
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - (1,13¢)
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 4,28( - 51

Total derivatives $ 122,28 $ 9,038 $ (1,077

The following table sets forth information regamlithe Company’s derivative financial instrument®atember 31, 2012:

December 31, 201
Notional Net Carrying
Amount Purchase Pric Value
(In thousands

Interest rate caps (n-hedge) $ 100,00 $ 9,03t $ 19
Interest rate swaps (n-hedge) 18,00( - (1,927
Interest rate swaps (hedge) 4,30(¢ - 3

Total derivatives $ 122,300 $ 9,038 $ (1,900
1) Derivatives in a net positive position arearled as “Other assets” and derivatives in a ngatiee position are recorded as “Other liabiliti@sthe Consolidated Statements of

Financial Condition
The following table sets forth the effect of detiva instruments on the Consolidated Statementsaafme for the periods indicated:

For the three months ended

March 31,

(In thousands) 2013 2012
Financial Derivatives

Interest rate cag $ 3 $ (337)

Interest rate swaps 78¢ (1,927)

Net Gain (loss§V) $ 78t ¢ (2,269

1) Net gains and (losses) are recorded as pi“Net loss from fair value adjustme” in the Consolidated Statements of Incol
12. Income Taxes

Flushing Financial Corporation files consolidatemtiEral and combined New York State and New Yorlg Ditome tax returns with its subsidiaries, witke #xception of Flushing Financ
Capital Trust Il, Flushing Financial Capital Tru#lft and Flushing Financial Capital Trust IV, whidlle separate Federal income tax returns as trastd Flushing Preferred Fund
Corporation, which files a separate Federal and Mevk State income tax return as a real estatesinvent trust.
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Income tax provisions are summarized as follows:
For the three months
ended March 31
(In thousands) 2013 2012
Federal:
Current $ 283« $ 3,132
Deferred 627 492
Total federal tax provision 3,461 3,62¢
State and Loca
Current 581 713
Deferred 2717 221
Total state and local tax provision 85¢€ 934
Total income tax provision $ 431¢ $ 4,55¢

The income tax provision in the Consolidated Statets of Income has been provided at effective 1@t&9.0% for the three months ended March 31, 20482012.
The effective rates differ from the statutory fealéncome tax rate as follows:

For the three months
ended March 31

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Taxes at federal statutory re $ 3,87¢ 35.(% $ 4,09 35.(%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting frc
State and local income tax, net of Fedincome tax benef 55¢ 5.C 607 5.2
Other (115 (1.0 (13¢) (1.9
Taxes at effective rate $ 4,31¢ 39.(% $ 4,55¢ 39.(%

The Company has recorded a deferred tax asseB3d3 $dllion at March 31, 2013, which is included‘@ther assetsin the Consolidated Statements of Financial ConwlitThis represer
the anticipated net federal, state and local tayefies expected to be realized in future years upenutilization of the underlying tax attributesneprising this balance. The Company
reported taxable income for federal, state, andlltax purposes in each of the past three fiscatsydn management'’s opinion, in view of the Comparprevious, current and projec
future earnings trend, the probability that somehef Companys $31.9 million deferred tax liability can be ugedoffset a portion of the deferred tax asset, af &s certain tax plannii
strategies, it is more likely than not that theedefd tax asset will be fully realized. Accordinghy valuation allowance was deemed necessarhéodéferred tax asset at March 31, 2013.
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13. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income:
The following table sets forth the changes in aadlated other comprehensive income by componerthfothree months ended March 31, 2013:
Unrealized Gain

and Losses on
Available for Sal Defined Benefi

Securities Pension Item Total
(In thousands
Beginning balance, net of tax $ 18,92 $ (6,78) $ 12,137
Other comprehensive income befreclassifications, net of te (2,599 - $ (2,599
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgnslve income, net of tax (1,609 16¢ (1,441
Net current period other comprehensive incomephex (4,20%) 16¢ (4,03%)
Ending balance, net of tax $ 14,71¢  $ (6,610 $ 8,10

The following table sets forth significant amourgslassified out of accumulated other comprehenisiseme by component for the three months endedMat, 2013:

Amounts Reclassified fro
Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Incorr

Details about Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income Compone
(Dollars in thousands

Affected Line Item in the Statement
Where Net Income is Present

Unrealized gains losses on availafor sale securities $ 2,85¢ Net gain on sale of securiti
(1,249 Tax expense
$ 1,60¢ Net of tax

Amortization of defined benefit pension iter

Actuarial losse! $ (30S) (1) Other expens
Prior service credits 11 (1) Other expense
(29¢) Total before tas
13C Tax benefit
$ (16€) Net of tax

(1) These accumulated other comprehensive income caenpoare included in the computation of net pecigdinsion cost (See Note 9 of the Notes to CoretaliiFinancial Statements
“Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit P
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14. Regulatory

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvendet of 1991 (“FDICIA”) imposes a number of mandatory supervisory measandsanks and thrift institutions. Among ot
matters, FDICIA established five capital zoneslassifications (welleapitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapgdlimignificantly undercapitalized and criticallydercapitalized). Su
classifications are used by bank regulatory agertcigletermine matters ranging from each institisa@uarterly FDIC deposit insurance premium assessnt® approvals of applicatic
authorizing institutions to grow their asset sizeotherwise expand business activities. Under otircapital regulations, the Bank is required to pgnwith each of three separate caj
adequacy standards.

At March 31, 2013, the Bank exceeded each of theetleapital requirements and is categorized asl-wegitalized” under the prompt corrective action regulationst f8gh below is .
summary of the Bank’s compliance:

(Dollars in thousands Amount Percent of Asse

Tier | (leverage) capital:

Capital leve $ 427,84¢ 9.76%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 218,65! 5.0C

Exces: 209,19« 4.7¢
Tier | risk -based capital:

Capital leve $ 427,84¢ 14.3%%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 179,16: 6.0C

Exces: 248,68° 8.32
Total risk-based capital:

Capital leve $ 458,87¢ 15.3%%

Requirement to be well capitaliz 298,60: 10.0C

Exces: 160,27 5.37

As a result of its conversion to a bank holding pamy on February 28, 2013, the Holding Company fecsubject to the same regulatory capital requirésnas the Bank. At March {
2013, the Holding Company'’s Tier | (leverage) calpiTier | risk-based capital and Total risk-basagital was 10.16%, 14.89%, and 15.93%, respewytivel
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15. New Authoritative Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 20130ich amends the authoritative accounting guidameger ASC Topic 220 Comprehensive Incomé& The amendments do 1
change the current requirements for reporting medne or other comprehensive income in financatestents. However, the amendments require an ¢atjiyovide information about t
amounts reclassified out of accumulated other celmgmsive income by component. In addition, an emitrequired to present, either on the face ofdtstement where net income
presented or in the notes, significant amountsassdied out of accumulated other comprehensivenrecby the respective line items of net incomednly if the amount reclassified
required under GAAP to be reclassified to net inedmits entirety in the same reporting period. &threr amounts that are not required under GAABetoeclassified in their entirety to
income, an entity is required to cragference to other disclosures required under GA#e® provide additional detail about those amoufite amendments in this update are effe
prospectively for reporting periods beginning affercember 15, 2012. Early adoption is permittedoptibn of this update did not have a material éffat the Companyg consolidate
results of operations or financial condition. SeeN13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial &tatgs “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income.”
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Quarterly Report should be read in conjunctiwith the more detailed and comprehensive discksimcluded in our Annual Report on Form K@er the year ended December
2012. In addition, please read this section injoantion with our Consolidated Financial Statemestsl Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementsained herein.

As used in this Quarterly Report, the wo“we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are used to refer to Flushing Financial Corporatiand our consolidated subsidiaries, including
surviving entity of the merger (the “Merger”) on Beiary 28, 2013 of our wholly owned subsidiary, $Hing Savings Bank, FSB (the “Savings Bankith and into Flushing Commerc
Bank (the“Commercial Bank”). The surviving entity of the Mger was the Commercial Bank, whose name has beemget to “Flushing Bank.” References herein to tBank” mean th
Savings Bank (including its wholly owned subsidiéimg Commercial Bank) prior to the Merger and sveviving entity after the Merger.

Statements contained in this Quarterly Reportirgdatio plans, strategies, objectives, economicguerénce and trends, projections of results of ipeactivities or investments and otl
statements that are not descriptions of histofeetls may be forwartboking statements within the meaning of SectioA 27 the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21Eh&f Securitie
Exchange Act of 1934. Forwatdeking information is inherently subject to risksd uncertainties and actual results could diffatemally from those currently anticipated due toumbe
of factors, which include, but are not limited factors discussed elsewhere in this Quarterly Regouat in other documents filed by us with the Sitiesrand Exchange Commission fr
time to time, including, without limitation, our Awal Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer8tie2012. Forward-looking statements may be ifledtby terms such as “may,”
“will,” “should,” “could,” “expects,” “plans,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “gliets,” “forecasts,” “potential” or “continuedr similar terms or the negative of these te
Although we believe that the expectations refledtethe forwardlooking statements are reasonable, we cannot giegréuture results, levels of activity, performanceachievements. V
have no obligation to update these forward-loolstegements.

Executive Summary

We are a Delaware corporation organized in May 198 Savings Bank was organized in 1929 as a Newk $tateehartered mutual savings bank. In 1994, the Saviag converted 1
a federally chartered mutual savings bank and akdhitg name from Flushing Savings Bank to Flusi8agings Bank, FSB. The Savings Bank converted fadiederally chartered mutt
savings bank to a federally chartered stock saviraggk on November 21, 1995, at which time Flushiirgancial Corporation acquired all of the stockie# Savings Bank. On February
2013, in the Merger, the Savings Bank merged with iato the Commercial Bank, with the CommerciahBas the surviving entity. Pursuant to the Mergfeg, Commercial Bank’charte
was changed to a full-service New York State chade&ommercial bank, and its name was changedughfig Bank. On July 21, 2011, as a result of todd¥rank Wall Street Refor
and Consumer Protection Act, the Savings Bank'sary regulator became the Office of the Comptradfiethe Currency and Flushing Financial Corpordsgorimary regulator became
Federal Reserve Board of Governors. Upon completfahe Merger, the Ban&’primary regulator became the New York State Depant of Financial Services (formerly, the New Y
State Banking Department), and its primary fedeegulator became the Federal Deposit InsurancedCatipn (“FDIC”). Deposits are insured to the maximum allowable arnbyrthe
FDIC. Additionally, the Bank is a member of the Eeal Home Loan Bank system. Also in connection i Merger, Flushing Financial Corporation becani@nk holding company. V
do not anticipate any significant changes to owgrafions or services as a result of the Merger. griveary business of Flushing Financial Corporatias been the operation of the B
The Bank owns three subsidiaries: Flushing Prefeffending Corporation, Flushing Service Corporatemmd FSB Properties Inc. In November 2006, thekBannched an internet bran
iGObanking.con® . The activities of Flushing Financial Corporatior @rimarily funded by dividends, if any, receivedrh the Bank, issuances of junior subordinated,detit issuances
equity securities. Flushing Financial Corporatiocosnmon stock is traded on the NASDAQ Global Selldatket under the symbol “FFIC.”

Our principal business is attracting retail deoBidm the general public and investing those digptmsgether with funds generated from ongoing apens and borrowings, primarily in |
originations and purchases of multi-family resid@nproperties and, to a lesser extent, one-to-famnily (focusing on mixedise properties, which are properties that contath besidentic
dwelling units and commercial units) and commercéall estate mortgage loans; (2) construction lopmsarily for residential properties; (3) Smalug@ness Administration (“SBA”)oans
and other small business loans; (4) mortgage loamgates such as mortgage-backed securities;rd.$. government securities, corporate fixetbme securities and other market:
securities. We also originate certain other consuo@ns including overdraft lines of credit. Ousuéts of operations depend primarily on net inteiesome, which is the difference betw:
the income earned on its interest-earning assetshencost of our interestearing liabilities. Net interest income is theulesf our interest rate margin, which is the diéfece between tl
average yield earned on interest-earning assettharalverage cost of interest-bearing liabilitedjusted for the difference in the average balafideterestearning assets as compared tc
average balance of interest-bearing liabilities. &ll& generate nointerest income from loan fees, service chargesleposit accounts, mortgage servicing fees, and détes, incom
earned on Bank Owned Life Insurance (“BOLI"), dierdls on Federal Home Bank of New York (“FHLB-N¥stpck and net gains and losses on sales of sesuaitid loans. Our operat
expenses consist principally of employee compemsaind benefits, occupancy and equipment costsy atbneral and administrative expenses and incamexpense. Our results
operations also can be significantly affected byprriodic provision for loan losses and specifiovision for losses on real estate owned.
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Our strategy is to continue our focus on beingretitution serving consumers, businesses, and gortal units in our local markets. In furtherantéhis objective, we intend to:

« continue our emphasis on the origination of mudtifly residential mortgage loans;

continue our transition to a ‘commercial’ bankimgtitution;

increase our commitment to the multi-cultural mapkece, with a particular focus on the Asian comityuim Queens;

maintain asset quality;

manage deposit growth and maintain a low cost d$uhrough

- business banking deposi
] municipal deposits through government banking,
] new customer relationships via iGObanking.®;

cross sell to lending and deposit customers;

take advantage of market disruptions to attraentsdnd customers from competitors;

manage interest rate risk and capital; and
» manage enterprise-wide risk.
There can be no assurance that we will be abléeotively implement this strategy. Our strategyidject to change by the Board of Directors.

Our investment policy, which is approved by the Bloaf Directors, is designed primarily to manage ihterest rate sensitivity of our overall assets kabilities, to generate a favora
return without incurring undue interest rate risidacredit risk, to complement our lending actistiend to provide and maintain liquidity. In estahbing our investment strategies,
consider our business and growth strategies, theaggic environment, our interest rate risk exposate interest rate sensitivity “gajpbsition, the types of securities to be held ar!
factors. We classify our investment securities\aslable for sale.

We carry a portion of our financial assets andrfaial liabilities at fair value and record changesheir fair value through earnings in notterest income on our Consolidated Statemer
Income and Comprehensive Income. A descriptiorheffinancial assets and financial liabilities the¢ carried at fair value through earnings candamd in Note 10 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, dekBold $68.5 million of mortgage-backed secgitiealizing a gain of $2.9 million, and prepaid $6&illion of FHLB-NY advance
scheduled to mature in 2014 and incurred a prepaypenalty of $2.6 million. Based on market prepeptassumptions, the mortgapaeked securities sold were yielding 1.96% whik
advances prepaid were costing 3.21%. The mortgagked securities were replaced with securitieglinigl approximately 2.00% and were funded by a méxaf new FHLBNY advance
and deposits costing approximately 0.75%. Thiguegiring is expected to increase net interestirem future periods.
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Additionally, during the three months ended Mardh 3013, the Bank continued to take an aggresgipeoach to reduce the level of non-performing loahke Bank sold 16 non-
performing loans for proceeds totaling $8.2 millievith charge-offs recorded at the time of salaling $0.4 million. Additionally, the Bank has agd to sell 34 noperforming loans fc
total proceeds of $7.7 million, and recorded $3ilian in chargeeffs. The sale of 30 of these loans, with net pedseof $7.2 million, was completed in April. Thdsans are reported
Loans held for sale in our consolidated financiatesments.

We continue to maintain conservative underwrititandards that include, among other things, a loavatue ratio of 75% or less and a debt coveragie od at least 125%. Multiamily
residential, commercial real estate and one-to-family mixed-use property mortgage loans origidaderring the three months ended March 31, 2013amaaverage loan-tealue ratio o
37.3% and an average debt coverage ratio of 265%.

Non-performing loans decreased by $2.3 million, or 887.6 million, and are at their lowest levelcgrthe fourth quarter of 2009. Loans delinquent 8@edays decreased $18.3 millit

or 11%, during the first quarter of 2013, and drtheir lowest level since the second quarter &2Q@oans delinquent over 90 days decreased $3liédmior 4%, and are at their lowest
level since the first quarter of 2010. Classified ariticized loans continued their improving trehdt began over a year ago, which resulted in% degluction in these categories in the first
quarter of 2013, and a 40% reduction since theikpevel at June 30, 2011.

Charge-offs during the three months ended Marci2813 were primarily due to sales of delinquenniand the transfer of loans to Loans held for. SEthe net chargefifs totaled $3.
million. Additional charge-offs were recorded as eantinued our program of obtaining updated appisjsand recording charge-offs based on these -gt®values as opposed to adi
to the allowance for loan losses. These chargetoféded $1.8 million. As a result, we do not caany nonperforming assets at more than 85% of their curappraised value. This proc
has insured that we have kept pace with changihgesan the real estate market. The average loaaltee ratio for our noperforming loans, based upon current appraisals,5a3% ¢
the end of the quarter.

Our net interest margin for the three months eridacch 31, 2013 was 3.29%. Excluding the prepayrpenglty incurred as a result of prepaying the FHIB-advances, our net inter
margin would have been 3.54%, a decrease of sis paimts from 3.60% in the fourth quarter of 20&8d a decrease of 14 basis points from 3.68%seiffitst quarter of 2012. Excludi
prepayment penalty income received on loans angagreent penalty incurred on borrowings, our negriest margin for the first quarter of 2013 was %044 decrease of three basis pc
from 3.47% for the fourth quarter of 2012. While sawv a decrease in our funding costs of 13 basmspfor the quarter, excluding the prepayment figrem advances, the yield on interest-
earning assets decreased 15 basis points, exclpdiépayment penalty income on loans. In the curirgntest rate environment, new loans and secsritie added at rates well below
portfolio average yield, and higher yielding loarsl securities are prepaid. We also continueatperience higher than average activity in loanseefcing during the first quarter of 20
which further reduced the yield on our loan poitfol

The Bank continues to be well-capitalized undeul&gry requirements, with Core, Tier 1 risk-based Total riskeased capital ratios of 9.78%, 14.33% and 15.38%gactively, at Marc
31, 2013. The Company is also subject to the sagelatory requirements. At March 31, 2013, the @any’s capital ratios for Core, Tier 1 risk-based & otal riskbased capital rati
were 10.16%, 14.89% and 15.93%, respectively.

COMPARISON OF OPERATING RESULTS FOR THE THREE MONTH S ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2012

General. Net income for the three months ended March B132was $6.8 million, a decrease of $0.4 million5®%, compared to $7.1 million for the three nisnénded March 3
2012. Diluted earnings per common share were $o2the three months ended March 31, 2013, a dseref $0.01, or 4.4%, from $0.23 for the three tm@ended March 31, 2012.

Return on average equity was 6.1% for the threethsoended March 31, 2013 compared to 6.8% forttteetmonths ended March 31, 2012. Return on averssgs was 0.6% for the th
months ended March 31, 2013 compared to 0.7% éotittee months ended March 31, 2012.

Interest Income. Total interest and dividend income decreased $4l8Bm or 8.0%, to $50.1 million for the three nttis ended March 31, 2013 from $54.4 million for theee montt
ended March 31, 2012. The decrease in interestrinasas attributable to a 54 basis point declintaéyield of interesearning assets to 4.82% for the three months ekt#edh 31, 201
from 5.36% in the comparable prior year period iplytoffset by an increase of $92.6 million in theerage balance of interesarning assets to $4,154.9 million for the threetin® ende
March 31, 2013 from $4,062.3 million for the congdale prior year period. The 54 basis point decimthe yield of interestarning assets was primarily due to a 44 basig petuction i
the yield of the loan portfolio to 5.39% for thee¢h months ended March 31, 2013 from 5.83% fottiree months ended March 31, 2012, combined with basis point decline in the yi
on total securities to 3.07% for the three monthdeel March 31, 2013 from 3.81% for the comparabier year period. In addition, the yield of inter@mrning assets was negati\
impacted by a $7.2 million decrease in the avebadance of the higher yielding loan portfolio amd%105.8 million increase in the average balanééiseolower yielding securities portfo
for the three months ended March 31, 2013 as caedparthe comparable prior year period, which hiser yield than the yield of total interesarning assets. These factors that rec
the yield were partially offset by a $6.0 millioeatease in the average balance of lower yielditeyéstearning deposits to $39.0 million for the three therended March 31, 2013 fri
$45.0 million for the comparable prior year peridtie 44 basis point decrease in the loan portisés primarily due to the decline in the rates eduo@new loan originations. The yield
the mortgage loan portfolio, excluding prepaymesngity income, decreased 42 basis points to 5.26%hé three months ended March 31, 2013 from 5.#@%he three months enc
March 31, 2012. The 74 basis point decrease iséharities portfolio yield was primarily due to therchase of new securities at lower yields thanetkisting portfolio.
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Interest Expense. Interest expense decreased $1.1 million, or 6.6%16.9 million for the three months ended MarchZ113 from $17.1 million for the three months eshéiéarch 31,
2012. The decrease in interest expense was dhe teduction in the cost of interest-bearing litib#, which decreased 15 basis points to 1.68%hithree months ended March 31, 2013
from 1.83% for the comparable prior year periode T basis point decrease in the cost of interestihg liabilities was primarily due to a declimethe cost of total deposits and borrowed
funds of 28 basis points and 25 basis points, iyedy, partially offset by a shift in deposit amentrations as lower costing total deposits avebaggnce decreased $165.0 million during
the three months ended March 31, 2013, while tleeame balance of higher costing borrowed fundsased $229.4 million during the same period. Z&basis point reduction in the
cost of total deposits was primarily due to the IBeeducing the rates it pays on its deposit proglubie cost of certificates of deposit, money meakeounts, savings accounts and NOW
accounts decreased 25 basis points, 19 basis peigis basis points and 14 basis points, respalgtitor the three months ended March 31, 2013 ftleencomparable prior year period. ~
decline in the cost of borrowed funds was primadil\e to the prepayment of $68.5 million in FHLB-M#vances during the three months ended March 3B &0an average cost of 3.21%
which was scheduled to mature in 2014 and replatiage borrowings with new long-term advances ngdii.75%, partially offset by a $2.6 million prepagnt penalty incurred on the
transaction.

Net Interest Income. For the three months ended March 31, 2013, netesiténcome was $34.1 million, a decrease of $3liom or 8.6%, from $37.3 million for the threeamths ende
March 31, 2012. The decrease in net interest inomaeeprimarily attributable to a 39 basis pointréese in the néatterest spread to 3.14% for the three months eiiadh 31, 2013 frol
3.53% for the three months ended March 31, 2012iafig offset by an increase of $92.6 million imet average balance of interestrning assets to $4,154.9 million for the threentins
ended March 31, 2013 from $4,062.3 million for dwenparable prior year period. The yield on inteesning assets decreased 54 basis points to 4 &28tef three months ended Ma
31, 2013 from 5.36% for the three months ended M&%, 2012. The cost of funds decreased 15 basgigspm 1.68% for the three months ended March2®1,3 from 1.83% for tt
comparable prior year period. The net interest imadgclined 39 basis points to 3.29% for the thmmmths ended March 31, 2013 from 3.68% for theettmenths ended March 31, 20
Excluding prepayment penalty income on loans amghgyment penalties on borrowings, the net interesgin would have been 3.44% for the three montiteé March 31, 2013, a
basis point decrease from 3.57 for the comparaiibe year period.

Provision for Loan Losses. A provision for loan losses of $6.0 million was oegded for the three months ended March 31, 2018;hwlvas the same as that recorded for the thredhs
ended March 31, 2012. During the three months @&iizrch 31, 2013, non-performing loans decrease8 $@lion to $87.6 million from $89.8 million at&ember 31, 2012. Net charge-
offs for the three months ended March 31, 2013edt$6.1 million. The current average loan-to-vaiao for our norperforming loans collateralized by real estate 88% at March 3
2013. When we have obtained properties througiclosaere, we have been able to quickly sell the @rigs at amounts that approximate book value. Wieipate that we will continue
see low loss content in our loan portfolio. The Baontinues to maintain conservative underwrititandards. However, given the chaxgfés recorded in the first quarter of 2013 and
current economic uncertainties, management, asuit i&f the regular quarterly analysis of the abbmwe for loans losses, deemed it necessary todr@c$6.0 million provision for possit
loan losses in the first quarter of 2013.See “-AM/@NCE FOR LOAN LOSSES.”
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Non-Interest Income. Non-interest income for the three months ended Madg 2013 was $5.3 million, an increase of $3.Bianifrom $1.9 million for the three months endédrch 31,
2012. The increase in non-interest income wasalyndue to the $2.9 million gain from the salenodrtgagebacked securities during the three months endediMat, 2012, as part of t
balance sheet restructuring previously discusgettiitionally, non-interest income improved due t$(3 million decrease in net losses from fair eaddjustments and $0.1 million
increases in both BOLI and FHLB-NY stock dividericsm the comparable prior year period.

Non-Interest Expense. Non-nterest expense was $22.4 million for the threentim® ended March 31, 2013, an increase of $0.9omjlbr 4.1%, from $21.5 million for the three mbs
ended March 31, 2012. The increase was primarily tduan increase of $1.2 million in salaries andeffies expense which was primarily due to increarestock based compensat
expense and employee benefits expense, partigetaby decreases of $0.1 million in both occupaacyl equipment expense and professional servioes the comparable prior ye
period. The first quarter of each year includesdffect of grants of annual restricted stock umiaeds. GAAP requires a significant portion of theseards to be expensed at the tim
grant. Included in Salaries and benefits expen$6.i8 million and $0.3 million for these awardstie three months ended March 31, 2013 and 2012ecésely, for accelerated expensi
Other expense includes $0.8 million and $0.7 nrillior these awards in the three months ended M2itcR013 and 2012, respectively, for acceleratgeesing. The increase in the cur
period accelerated expense as compared to theyeaomperiod is due to the increase in the Compasigck price and additional employees whose gametsequired to be fully expensec
grant date. Since this accelerated expense fartheal restricted stock unit awards occurs in itis¢ uarter, subsequent quarters of 2013 should hdower level of non-interest expense.

Income before Income Taxes. Income before the provision for income taxes desgd#0.6 million, or 5.2%, to $11.1 million for theee months ended March 31, 2012 from $11.7on
for the three months ended March 31, 2012 for ¢asans discussed above.

Provision for Income Taxes. Income tax expense decreased $0.2 million to $4ll®mfor the three months ended March 31, 2018fi$4.6 million for the three months ended Marct
2012. The effective tax rate was 39.0% for theghm®nths ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Assets. Total assets at March 31, 2013 were $4,476.5amjllan increase of $25.1 million, or 0.6%, from4®1L.4 million at December 31, 2012. Total loaret, decreased $32.8 millic
during the three months ended March 31, 2013 t&7&B2 million from $3,203.0 million at December 2D12. Loan originations and purchases were $1&illibn for the three montt
ended March 31, 2013, an increase of $2.8 milliomf$118.6 million for the three months ended M&8th2012. During the three months ended Marct2813, we continued to focus
the origination of multfamily properties and business loans with a fubitienship. Loan applications in process havetioored to show improvement, totaling $360.4 millanMarch 31
2013 compared to $211.4 million at December 31228d $258.4 million at March 31, 2012.

L 46-




PART | — FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following table shows loan originations andghases for the periods indicated:

For the three montt
ended March 31

(In thousands 2013 2012
Multi-family residentia $ 4292 3% 61,90
Commercial real estat®d 6,98¢ 3,42¢
One-to-four family — mixec-use propert 4,39( 5,11¢
One-to-four family - residential 6,51( 5,80¢
Cc-operative apartmen 2,067 -
Constructior - -
Small Business Administratic 16¢ 26€
Taxi medallion? - 3,46¢
Commercial business and other 58,34( 38,63¢
Total $ 121,38t $ 118,61

(1) Includes purchases of $0.5 million for theethmonths ended March 31, 2013.
(2) Includes purchases of $3.5 million for theee months ended March 31, 2012.

The Bank continues to maintain conservative undéngrstandards that include, among other thingsaa-to-value ratio of 75% or less and a debt caye ratio of at least 125%. Multi-
family residential, commercial real estate and tmésur family mixed-use property mortgage loangioated during the first quarter of 2013 had aarage loan-tasalue ratio of 37.3% at
an average debt coverage ratio of 265%.

The Bank’s non-performing assets totaled $93.6ionilat March 31, 2013, a decrease of $4.9 millimmf $98.5 million at December 31, 2012. Total pa&mforming assets as a percen
of total assets were 2.09% at March 31, 2013 coeuptr 2.21% at December 31, 2012. The ratio ofaglee for loan losses to total nparforming loans was 35% at March 31, 2013
December 31, 2012. See —“TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCBED AND NON-PERFORMING ASSETS.”

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, ragegacked securities increased $44.6 million, or 6.2%%764.7 million from $720.1 million at Decemt&t, 2012. The increase
mortgagebacked securities during the three months endeatiMat, 2013 was primarily due to purchases of $L5&llion, partially offset by sales and repaymeaots68.5 million an
$36.2 million, respectively. During the three madnded March 31, 2013, other securities incre@8edmillion, or 2.7%, to $235.6 million from $239million at December 31, 2012. 1
increase in other securities during the three noatided March 31, 2013 was primarily due to purehas $27.3 million, partially offset by $20.3 nioh in calls. Other securities primai
consist of securities issued by government ageneiatual or bond funds that invest in governmert government agency securities and corporate bonds.

Liabilities. Total liabilities were $4,032.6 million at March,31013, an increase of $23.6 million, or 0.6%, fr$4009.1 million at December 31, 2012. Duringttiree months ended
March 31, 2013, due to depositors increased $91lli®m or 3.0%, to $3,106.7 million, as a resultao$143.8 million increase in core deposits plytiaffset by a $52.3 million decrease in
certificates of deposit. Borrowed funds decreasg@Gmillion during the three months ended MarchZ1.3 primarily due to the $91.5 increase in duddpositors.

Equity. Total stockholders’ equity increased $1.5 million,0.3%, to $443.9 million at March 31, 2013 frod4%.4 million at December 31, 2012. Stockholderity increased primari
due to net income of $6.8 million for the three rhsnended March 31, 2013, and $1.5 million duehwissuance of shares from the annual funding éiceemployee retirement ple
through the release of common shares from the Brapl8enefit Trust. These increases were partidfgebby the declaration and payment of dividendsh® Company common stock
$4.01 million, the purchase of 18,560 treasury ehat a cost of $0.3 million and a decrease inr@bmprehensive income of $4.0 million primarilyedio a decrease in the fair value of
securities portfolio. Book value per common shags814.39 at March 31, 2013 and December 31, ZD42gible book value per common share was $13.8Vlaach 31, 2013 ar
December 31, 2012.

On September 28, 2011, the Company announced thereation by the Board of Directors of a new coamstock repurchase program, which authorizes tinehase of up to 1,000,0
shares of the Company’s common stock. During theetimonths ended March 31, 2013, the Company reased 18,560 shares of the Compamdmmon stock at an average co:
$16.24 per share. At March 31, 2013, 367,402 shamesin to be repurchased under the current steglrchase program. Stock will be purchased undercthrent stock repurche
program from time to time, in the open market gotlyh private transactions, subject to market damh. There is no expiration or maximum dollar amounder this authorization.
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Cash flow. During the three months ended March 31, 2013, fumdsgided by the Company's operating activities anted to $20.1 million. These funds were utilizedund net investin
activities of $19.9 million. The Company's primadysiness objective is the origination and purctasene-to-four family (including mixed-use propes), multifamily residential an
commercial real estate mortgage loans and comnhebeiainess and SBA loans. During the three moatided March 31, 2013, the net total of loan origames and purchases less |
repayments and sales was a $12.1 million inflowash. During the three months ended March 31, 20&3Company also funded $171.0 million in purckasfesecurities available for s
and repaid $121.5 million in short-term borrowedds. During the three months ended March 31, 20i®]s were provided by a net increase of $40.4ianilin longterm borrowe
funds. Additionally, funds were provided by $138dlion in proceeds from maturities, sales, caligl prepayments of securities available for sate$81.2 million from a net increase
deposits. The Company also used funds of $4.0anilind $1.0 million for dividend payments and pas#s of treasury stock, respectively, during theetimonths ended March 31, 2013.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Consolidated Statements of Financial Positiamehbeen prepared in accordance with generallypéedeaccounting principles in the United StatesAoferica, which require tt
measurement of financial position and operatingiltesin terms of historical dollars without congithg the changes in fair value of certain investteesue to changes in inter
rates. Generally, the fair value of financial istreents such as loans and securities fluctuatessely with changes in interest rates. As a reguteases in interest rates could rest
decreases in the fair value of the Company’s isteearning assets which could adversely affectCbmpanys results of operations if such assets were soJdndhe case of securiti
classified as available-for-sale, decreases ifCmpany’s stockholders’ equity, if such securitiese retained.

The Company manages the mix of interest-earningtassd interedtearing liabilities on a continuous basis to maxinieturn and adjust its exposure to interestriske On a quarter
basis, management prepares the “Earnings and Edofoqposure to Changes in Interest Raggjort for review by the Board of Directors, as suamized below. This report quantifies
potential changes in net interest income and nefgio value should interest rates go up or dowshocked) 200 basis points, assuming the yield suoé¢he rate shocks will be paralle
each other. The Compasytegulators currently place focus on the net pbetfvalue, focusing on a rate shock up or dowr2@® basis points. Net portfolio value is definedtlzde marke
value of assets net of the market value of liabgit The market value of assets and liabilitiedetermined using a discounted cash flow calculatibine net portfolio value ratio is the re
of the net portfolio value to the market value séets. All changes in income and value are medsag@ercentage changes from the projected neestti@icome and net portfolio value
the base interest rate scenario. The base inteesscenario assumes interest rates at MarcB03B. Various estimates regarding prepayment gsisoms are made at each level of
shock. However, prepayment penalty income is exadufilom this analysis. Actual results could diffggnificantly from these estimates. At March 3012, the Company was within 1
guidelines set forth by the Board of Directorsdach interest rate level.

The following table presents the Company’s interatt shock as of March 31, 2013:

Projected Percentage Change¢

Net Interes Net Portfolio Net Portfolio
Change in Interest Ra Income Value Value Ratic
-200 Basis point -2.8% 9.7(% 14.3%
-100 Basis point -0.82 6.12 14.0¢
Base interest rai 0.0C 0.0C 13.5¢
+100 Basis point -2.64 -10.7¢ 12.5¢
+200 Basis point -5.8€ -21.3¢ AL ]S
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AVERAGE BALANCES

Net interest income represents the difference batviecome on intere-earning assets and expense on intdreating liabilities. Net interest income depengdsruthe relative amount
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing ili@siland the interest rate earned or paid on th€he following table sets forth certain informaticelating to the Company’Consolidate
Statements of Financial Condition and Consolid@&ttements of Income for the three months endeatiMat, 2013 and 2012, and reflects the averagd gielassets and average co:
liabilities for the periods indicated. Such yieldad costs are derived by dividing income or expebg the average balance of assets or liabilitiespectively, for the perio

shown. Average balances are derived from averaije lhlances. The yields include amortizatiorfiegfs which are considered adjustments to yields.

For the three months ended March

2013 2012
Average Average
Balance Interest Balance Interest
Assets
Interes-earning asset:
Mortgage loans, net (: $ 2,882,022 39,747 552% $ 2,906,82f 43,197 5.94%
Other loans, net (1) 304,70« 3,197 4.1¢ 287,14 3,36 4.6¢
Total loans, net 3,186,72! 42,94( 5.3¢ 3,193,96' 46,56( 5.82
Mortgagebacked securitie 708,97 5,721 3.2¢ 706,57t 7,012 3.97
Other securities 220,18 1,40¢ 2.5¢€ 116,75 82F 2.8¢
Total securities 929,15¢ 7,12¢ 3.07 823,33! 7,83¢ 3.81
Interes-earning deposits ar
federal funds sold 38,97t 17 0.17 44,96¢ 17 0.1
Total interest-earning assets 4,154,85i 50,08¢ 4.82 4,062,26! 54,41°* 5.3€
Other assets 271,80¢ 235,05¢
Total assets $ 4,426,66 $ 4,297,32!
Liabilities and Equity
Interes-bearing liabilities
Deposits
Savings accoun $ 284,98. 13t 01¢ % 339,05¢ 22¢ 0.27
NOW account 1,184,75i 1,582 0.5:2 980,77* 1,65(C 0.67
Money market accoun 143,40! 54 0.1f 195,10: 164 0.34
Certificate of deposit accounts 1,227,03: 6,511 2.1z 1,494,15. 8,851 2.37
Total due to deposito 2,840,17: 8,28: 1.17 3,009,09I 10,89¢ 1.4E
Mortgagors' escrow accounts 42,13¢ 9 0.0¢ 38,23¢ 11 0.12
Total deposit 2,882,31 8,291 1.1¢ 3,047,32i 10,91( 1.4z
Borrowed funds 913,29¢ 7,64¢ 3.3t 683,91 6,16( 3.6C
Total interest-bearing liabilities 3,795,61! 15,94( 1.6¢ 3,731,24! 17,07( 1.82
Non interes-bearing deposit 148,35 114,48
Other liabilities 41,24¢ 32,10¢
Total liabilities 3,985,21 3,877,84.
Equity 441,45( 419,48:
Total liabilities and equity $  4,426,66 $ 4,297,322
Net interest income
net interest rate spread $ 34,14¢ 3.1%% 37,34¢ 3.52%
Net interes-earning assets
net interest margin $ 359,24 3.2¢% $ 331,02¢ 3.68%
Ratio of interes-earning assets !
interest-bearing liabilities 1.06X 1.06X

(1)Loan interest income includes loan fee income (tvincludes net amortization of deferred fees arslszdate charges, and prepayment penalties) abzippately $0.8 million and $0

million for the three months ended March 31, 2048 2012, respectivel:
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The following table sets forth the Company’s loaigioations (including the net effect of refinang)nand the changes in the Companpbrtfolio of loans, including purchases, saled

principal reductions for the periods indicated.

(In thousands

For the three months ended March
2013 2012

Mortgage Loans
At beginning of perioc

Mortgage loans originate:
Multi-family residentia
Commercial real esta
One¢to-four family — mixec-use propert
One-to-four family — residential
Cc-operative apartmen
Construction

Total mortgage loans originated

Mortgage loans purchase
Commercial real estate
Total mortgage loans purchased

Less:
Principal and other reductio
Sales

At end of period

Commercial Business and Other Loans
At beginning of perioc

Other loans originate«
Small Business Administratic
Taxi medallior
Commercial busines
Other

Total other loans originated

Other loans purchase
Taxi medallion
Total other loans purchased

Less:
Principal and other reductio
Sales

At end of period

$ 2,906,888 $ 2,939,01

42,92t 61,90¢
6,53¢ 3,42¢
4,39( 5,11¢
6,51( 5,80¢
2,067 -
62,42¢ 76,24%
452 -
452 -
96,85: 86,85¢
4,51¢ 8,84:

$ 2,868,338 % 2,919,55!

$ 314,49: % 274,98:
16¢ 26€

- 8

57,13¢ 37,93¢

1,201 70C

58,50¢ 38,91(

- 3,45¢

= 3,45¢

52,68’ 22,40¢

= 214

$ 320,311 $ 294,73(
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TROUBLED DEBT RESTRUCUTURED AND NON -PERFORMING ASSETS

Management continues to adhere to the Bank’s ceatee underwriting standards. The majority of Bank’s nonperforming loans are collateralized by residentigome producin
properties that are occupied, thereby retainingenaditheir value and reducing the potential lodge Bank takes a proactive approach to managinggiednt loans, including conducting :
examinations and encouraging borrowers to meet wiBank representative. The Bank has been deveagiortterm payment plans that enable certain borrowersritiy their loan
current. The Bank reviews its delinquencies onaa loy loan basis and continually explores wayselp borrowers meet their obligations and returmthoack to current status. At times,
Bank may restructure a loan to enable a borrowemtdinue making payments when it is deemed tonbihé best longerm interest of the Bank. This restructure mayude makiny
concessions to the borrower that the Bank wouldnmake in the normal course of business, such asciegl the interest rate until the next reset dextending the amortization peri
thereby lowering the monthly payments, or chandirgloan to interest only payments for a limiteddiperiod. At times, certain problem loans havenbrestructured by combining m¢
than one of these options. The Bank believes #wtucturing these loans in this manner will alloavtain borrowers to become and remain currenhein toans. The Bank classifies th
loans as TDR. Loans which have been current focensecutive months at the time they are restredtas TDR remain on accrual status. Loans whicle welinquent at the time they
restructured as a TDR are placed on moorual status until they have made timely paymésntsix consecutive months. Loans that are retired as TDR but are not performing
accordance with the restructured terms are exclérded the TDR table below, as they are placed anaccrual status and reported as non-performingsloa

The following table shows loans classified as Th& tare performing according to their restructuszchs at the periods indicated:

March 31, December 31
(In thousands 2013 2012
Accrual Status:
Multi-family residentia $ 281t $ 2,34¢
Commercial real esta 3,81( 3,26°
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 2,32¢ 2,33¢
One-to-four family - residentia 371 374
Constructior 2,83t 3,50(
Commercial business and other 4,43¢ 3,84¢
Total 16,59: 15,67:
Non-accrual status:
Commercial real estate 3,571 3,872
Total 3,571 3,872
Total performing troubled debt restructured $ 20,161 $ 19,54«

During the three months ended March 31, 2013, tlaes totaling $1.3 million were restructured &RT

Interest income on loans is recognized on the atdrasis. The accrual of income on loans is disnoatl when certain factors, such as contractuahgieéncy of 90 days or more, indic
reasonable doubt as to the timely collectabilitysoéh income. Additionally, uncollected interest\pously recognized on nasecrual loans is reversed from interest incoméatime th
loan is placed on noaecrual status. Loans in default 90 days or ma@dpdheir maturity date but not their payments)ttwe to accrue interest as long as the borrowatiues to rem
monthly payments.
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The following table shows non-performing assethatperiods indicated:

March 31, December 31
(In thousands 2013 2012
Loans 90 days or more past due
and still accruing:
Multi-family residentia $ 1,07 $ -
Cc-operative apartmen 108 -
Construction 602 644
Total 1,77¢ 644
Non-accrual loans:
Multi-family residentia 21,26: 16,48¢
Commercial real esta 14,55¢ 15,64(
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 16,02¢ 18,28(
One-to-four family - residentia 13,68¢ 13,72¢
Cc-operative apartmen 16C 234
Constructior 7,39¢ 7,69t
Small business administratit 45¢ 283
Commercial business and other 12,64( 16,86(
Total 86,18 89,20+
Total non-performing loans 87,96: 89,84¢
Other non-performing assets:
Real estate acquired through foreclos 2,18¢ 5,27¢
Investment securities 3,80¢ 3,332
Total 5,991 8,61(
Total non-performing assets $ 93,95 $ 98,45¢

Included in noraccrual loans were five loans totaling $10.5 milland seven loans totaling $11.1 million which westructured as TDR which were not performing doaadance wit
their restructured terms at March 31, 2013 and Béeee 31, 2012, respectively.

The Bank’s non-performing assets totaled $93.6ionilat March 31, 2013, a decrease of $4.9 millimmf $98.5 million at December 31, 2012. Total panforming assets as a percen
of total assets were 2.09% at March 31, 2013 coeuptr 2.21% at December 31, 2012. The ratio ofaghe for loan losses to total npafforming loans was 35% at March 31, 2013
December 31, 2012.

The Bank’s nomperforming loans totaled $87.6 million at March 2013, a decrease of $2.3 million from $89.8 millat December 31, 2012. During the three montheamdarch 31
2013, 48 loans totaling $18.0 million were addeddo-performing loans, eight loans totaling $1.4 millimere returned to performing status, 11 loansitwe$5.5 million were paid in fu
16 loans totaling $7.8 million were sold, four Isataling $0.7 million were transferred to othealrestate owned, and charge-offs of $5.4 milli@memecorded on noperforming loan
that were non-performing at the beginning of thstfijuarter of 2013.

Non-performing investment securities include two podiedt preferred securities for which we are neereing payments. At March 31, 2013, these investrsecurities had a combir
amortized cost and market value of $8.3 million &8 million, respectively.
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The following table shows our delinquent loans &t less than 90 days past due still accruingeatend considered performing at the periods aidi:

March 31, 201!

December 31, 201

60 - 89 30-59 60 - 89 30-59
days days days days
(In thousands
Multi-family residentia $ 254 $ 14,66¢ $ 4,827 24,05¢
Commercial real esta 1,30¢ 11,06 3,622 9,76¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 1,90¢ 22,99 3,36¢ 21,01:
One-to-four family - residentia 70¢& 3,72¢ 1,88¢ 3,407
Cc-operative apartmen - - - -
Construction loan - - - 2,462
Small Business Administratic - 31 - 404
Taxi medallion - - -
Commercial business and other 1 62 6 2
Total delinquent loans $ 6,462 $ 5255: $ 13,70¢ 61,11(

CRITICIZED AND CLASSIFIED ASSETS

Our policy is to review our assets, focusing priilgaon the loan portfolio, other real estate owrgedl the investment portfolios, to ensure that tleelit quality is maintained at the higk
levels. When weaknesses are identified, immedietien is taken to correct the problem throughdim®ntact with the borrower or issuer. We then itoorthese assets and, in accord:
with our policy and current regulatory guidelinesge designate them as “Special Mention,” which issidered a “Criticized Asset,” and “Substandardybtibtful,” or “Loss,” which ar¢
considered “Classified Assets,” as deemed neces$¥eydesignate an asset as Substandard when-defieked weakness is identified that jeopardizesotiderly liquidation of the debt. V
designate an asset as Doubtful when it displayintherent weakness of a Substandard asset withadthed provision that collection of the debt in folh the basis of existing facts, is hig
improbable. We designate an asset as Loss ifdieé&sned the debtor is incapable of repayment. Ltwatsare designated as Loss are charged to tloevaéfice for Loan Losses. Assets
are nonaccrual are designated as Substandard, Doubtfubss. We designate an asset as Special Mentidre ihsset does not warrant designation within ortbebther categories, |
does contain a potential weakness that deservesrciitention. Our total Criticized and Classifabsets were $199.9 million at March 31, 2013, aedee of $24.3 million from $22¢

million at December 31, 2012.
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The following table sets forth the Banks’ assetsigitated as Criticized and Classified at March2®1L,3:

(In thousands Special Mentio Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 11,15 $ 26,58: $ - $ - $ 37,73t
Commercial real esta 8,60( 26,51¢ - - 35,11°¢
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 11,81 22,94t - - 34,75¢
One-to-four family - residentia 2,842 15,31 - - 18,157
Cc-operative apartmen - 267 - - 267
Construction loan 3,137 7,83¢ - - 10,97:
Small Business Administratic 22¢€ 141 - - 367
Commercial business and other 2,22¢ 14,79: 1,08( - 18,10(
Total loans 39,99¢ 114,39: 1,08( - 155,47(
Investment Securities: @)
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 16,54: - - 16,54:
Private issue CMO o 25,69¢ o o 25,69¢
Total investment securities - 42,23¢ - - 42,23¢
Other Real Estate Owned - 2,18¢ - - 2,18¢
Total $ 39,99¢ $ 158,81¢ $ 1,08 $ - 3 199,89t
The following table sets forth the Bank’s assetsigieated as Criticized and Classified at DecembeB12:
(In thousands Special Mentio Substandar Doubtful Loss Total
Loans:
Multi-family residentia $ 16,348 $ 22,76¢ $ - $ - $ 39,11«
Commercial real esta 11,097 27,877 - - 38,97
One-to-four family - mixec-use propert 13,104 26,50¢ - - 39,61(
One-to-four family - residentia 5,22% 15,32¢ - - 20,55
Cc-operative apartmen 10< 237 - - 34C
Construction loan 3,80¢ 10,59¢ - - 14,40:¢
Small Business Administratic 32¢ 21z 244 - 77¢
Commercial business and other 3,04¢ 18,41¢ 1,08( - 22,54:
Total loans 53,04« 121,94t 1,32¢ - 176,31«
Investment Securities: )
Pooled trust preferred securiti - 16,18¢ - - 16,18¢
Private issue CMO - 26,42¢ - - 26,42¢
Total investment securities - 42,61¢ - - 42,61¢
Other Real Estate Owned - 5,27¢ - - 5,27¢
Total $ 53,04 $ 169,84: $ 1,32 $ - 3 224,21(

(1) Our investment securities are classifiedesmisties available for sale and as such are chateheir fair value in our Consolidated Finan@ghtements. The securities above had :
value of $36.3 million and $35.2 million at March,3013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Undaent applicable regulatory guidelines, we asuied to disclose the classif
investment securities, as shown in the tables gtaivtaeir book values (amortized cost, or faineafor securities that are under the fair valueoopt Additionally, the requirement is or
for the Banks securities. Flushing Financial Corporation had private issue trust preferred security with akeavalue of $0.3 million classified as Substandatrtarch 31, 2013 and t
private issue trust preferred securities classidie@ubstandard with a combined market value & $llion at December 31, 2012.
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On a quarterly basis, all collateral dependantdatat are designated as Special Mention, SubsthmdeDoubtful are internally reviewed for impairntebased on updated cash flows
income producing properties or updated independpptaisals. The loan balances of collateral degeinunpaired loans are then compared to the lopdated fair value. The balar
which exceeds fair value is generally charged-othe allowance for loan losses.

We designate investment securities as Substandaed whe investment grade rating by one or morédefrating agencies is below investment grade. We ligsignated a total of ni
investment securities that are held at the Ban8uisstandard at March 31, 2013. Our classified imvest securities at March 31, 2013 held by the Baclude five private issue CM(
rated below investment grade by one or more ofétiag agencies, three issues of pooled trust pexfesecurities and one private issue trust prefesecurity. The Investment Securi
which are classified as Substandard at March 313 20e securities that were rated investment gndus we purchased them. These securities havebesrhsubsequently downgradec
at least one rating agency to below investmentegratirough March 31, 2013, two of the pooled tprsferred securities and four private issue CM@snat paying principal and interes
scheduled. We test each of these securities glyefoeimpairment, through an independent thirdtpar

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We have established and maintain on our bookslawace for loan losses that is designed to prosideserve against estimated losses inherent inwvarall loan portfolio. The allowan
is established through a provision for loan lodsesed on managemesnevaluation of the risk inherent in the varioumponents of the loan portfolio and other factans)uding historice
loan loss experience (which is updated quartedy®nges in the composition and volume of the photfaollection policies and experience, trendshia volume of noraccrual loans ar
local and national economic conditions. The deteatidon of the amount of the allowance for loan éssgicludes estimates that are susceptible tofiigni changes due to change
appraisal values of collateral, national and lae@dnomic conditions and other factors. We reviewloan portfolio by separate categories with simiiak and collateral characteristi
Impaired loans are segregated and reviewed sefyarAte non-accrual loans are classified impaired. Impairechdoaecured by collateral are reviewed based orfaihevalue of thei
collateral. For noreollateralized impaired loans, management estimatgsrecoveries that are anticipated for each ldaconnection with the determination of the allowe, the mark
value of collateral ordinarily is evaluated by etaff appraiser. On a quarterly basis, the estidhesdues of impaired mortgage loans are intermaiffewed, based on updated cash flow
income producing properties, and at times an updatiependent appraisal is obtained. The loambakof collateral dependent impaired loans ane toenpared to the propersyupdate
fair value. We consider fair value of collaterapdadent loans to be 85% of the appraised or inttgreatimated value of the property. The balancéctviexceeds fair value is generi
chargedeff. When evaluating a loan for impairment, we dx rely on guarantees, and the amount of impairmany, is based on the fair value of the collateWe do not carry loans a
value in excess of the fair value due to a guaeafrtem the borrower. Impaired mortgage loans thetenwvritten down resulted from quarterly reviewsipdated appraisals that indicated
properties’ estimated value had declined from wthenloan was originated. Current year charge-afisrgeeff trends, new loan production, current balancepbsticular loan categorie
and delinquent loans by particular loan categaiesalso taken into account in determining the @yiate amount of allowance. The Board of Directersews and approves the adeqt
of the allowance for loan losses on a quarterlyshas

In assessing the adequacy of the allowance, wewegur loan portfolio by separate categories withilar risk and collateral characteristics, e.gyltifamily residential, commercial re
estate, one-to-four family mixed-use property, tmdour family residential, coperative apartment, construction, SBA, commeteiginess, taxi medallion and consumer loans. Ireg
loans are segregated and reviewed separately.oflaocrual loans and TDRs are considered impairedaimeg loans secured by real estate are reviewegdhars the fair value of the
collateral. In connection with the determinationtioé allowance, the market value of collateral madiy is evaluated by our staff appraiser. On artprly basis, the estimated value
impaired mortgage loans are internally reviewedetdasn updated cash flows for income producing ptéggeand, at times, an updated independent appiaisbtained. The loan balan
of collateral dependent impaired loans are thenpased to the loans updated fair value. The balarteh exceeds fair value is generally chargéfdWe do not allocate additional reser
to loans which have been written down to their f@ilue. When evaluating a loan for impairment, wendt rely on guarantees and the amount of impaitpifeany, is based on the fair va
of the collateral. We do not carry loans at a vatuexcess of the fair value due to a guarantem fitee borrower. Impaired mortgage loans that wenittem down resulted from quarte
reviews or updated appraisals that indicated tlopgaties’estimated value had declined from when the loan avagnated. Loans classified as TDR which arefqrering in accordanc
with their modified terms are evaluated based enpttojected discounted cash flow of the restructlman at the loans effective interest rate proretstructuring. A portion of the allowar
for loan losses is allocated in the amount by whiehrecorded investment in the TDR exceeds theodigted cash flow. For narellateralized impaired loans, management estimetg
recoveries that are anticipated for each loan. Rigo of the allowance is allocated to nooHateralized loans based on these estimatesdRas¢he review of impaired loans, which inclu
loans classified as TDR, a portion of the allowawes allocated to impaired loans in the amountlof $nillion and $1.5 million at March 31, 2013 abdcember 31, 2012, respectively.
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General provisions are established against perfgrtgans in our portfolio in amounts deemed prudsntanagement. A portion of the allowance is a@ted to the remaining portfo
based on historical loss experience. The histolesa period used for this allocation was threeyellanagement also prepared an additional analysiasure that the remaining portiot
the allowance for possible loan losses is suffictencover losses inherent in the loan portfolibisTanalysis considered: (1) the current economigrenment, (2) delinquency and non-
accrual trends, (3) classified loan trends, (4)rtble inherent in our loan portfolio and volume anehds of loan types, (5) recent trends in chaf@®-(6) changes in underwriting standa
(7) the experience, ability and depth of our lesdand (8) collection policies and experience. Basethese reviews, management concluded the dgreetan of the allowance should
$29.6 million at March 31, 2013 and December 3112Qespectively, resulting in a total allowance$&1.0 million and $31.1 million at March 31, 2048d December 31, 20:
respectively. The Board of Directors reviews angrapes the adequacy of the allowance for loan bssea quarterly basis. Management has concludeédrenBoard of Directors h
concurred, that at March 31, 2013, the allowance suficient to absorb losses inherent in our Iparifolio.
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The following table sets forth the activity in tB®@mpany's allowance for loan losses for the perindieated:

For the three months ended March

(Dollars in thousands 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of peric $ 31,10¢ $ 30,34«
Provision for loan losse 6,00( 6,00(
Loans charge-off:
Multi-family residentia (1,489 (1,067)
Commercial real esta (681) (1,780
On¢to-four family — mixec-use property (2,606) (1,46¢)
One-to-four family — residential (697) (826)
Cc-operative apartmen (74) (42)
Constructior (239 (239
Small Business Administratic (204) (113)
Commercial business and other (3049 (495)
Total loans charged-off (6,282 (6,019
Recoveries
Multi-family residentia 11 57
Commercial real esta 8C 70
On¢-to-four family — mixec-use propert 53 56
Oneto-four family — residential 31 1
Small Business Administratic 3C 9
Commercial business and other - 10C
Total recoveries 20E 292
Net charg-offs (6,079) (5,72¢6)
Balance at end of period $ 31,027 $ 30,61¢
Ratio of net char¢-offs during the period t
average loans outstanding during the pe 0.7€% 0.72%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to gross lodrend of perioc 0.97% 0.95%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performing
assets at end of peri 33.1% 24.2%
Ratio of allowance for loan losses to -performing
loans at end of peric 35.4% 25.5%
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

For a discussion of the qualitative and quantiatiisclosures about market risk, see the informatioder the caption "Management's Discussion aralyais of Financial Condition a
Results of Operations - Interest Rate Risk."

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company carried out, under the supervisionveitithe participation of the Comparsyinanagement, including its Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer, an evaluatior
the effectiveness of the design and operation ®Gbmpany’s disclosure controls and proceduresig¢fined in Rule 1345(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934)fdke end ¢
the period covered by this Quarterly Report. Bagpdn that evaluation, the Chief Executive Offieed Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as cdirvh 31, 2013, the design ¢
operation of these disclosure controls and proe@dwuere effective. During the period covered by Quarterly Report, there have been no chang#seiCompanys internal control o
financial reporting that have materially affectedare reasonably likely to materially affect, Bempany’s internal control over financial reporting

-58-




PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is a defendant in various lawsuitsnag@ment of the Company, after consultation wittside legal counsel, believes that the resolutibthese various matters will r
result in any material adverse effect on the Comijsaconsolidated financial condition, results oémgtions and cash flows.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from theaistorfs disclosed in the Company’s Annual Reporfform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth information regamlithe shares of common stock repurchased by thep@uwyrduring the three months ended March 31, 2013:

Maximum

Total Number o Number of
Total Shares Purchas:  Shares That Ma
Number as Part of Public/ Yet Be Purchast
of Shares Average Pric  Announced Plar  Under the Plan

Period Purchase! Paid per Sha or Program: or Program:
January 1 to January 31, 20 - $ - - 385,96.
February 1 to February 28, 20 - - - 385,96:
March 1 to March 31, 2013 18,56( 16.2¢ 18,56( 367,40

Total 18,56( $ 16.2¢ 18,56(

On September 28, 2011, the Company announced thereation by the Board of Directors of a new coamstock repurchase program, which authorizes tinehase of up to 1,000,0
shares of the Company’s common stock. During lineet months ended March 31, 2013, the Company ¢keased 18,560 shares of the Compamgmmon stock at an average co:
$16.24 per share. At March 31, 2013, 367,402 shamain to be repurchased under the current semkrchase program. Stock will be purchased wutide current stock repurchi
program from time to time, in the open market gotlyh private transactions subject to market camuit There is no expiration or maximum dollar amtaunder this authorization.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM5. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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ITEM6. EXHIBITS

Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decem®e2@05 by and between Flushing Financial Corponatind Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financtadrporation (1.

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (

3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Raating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @anation (4)

3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated agSArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlaghFinancial Corporation (2

3.6 By-Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation |

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@&gelke Flushing Financial Corporation and Computaesirust Company N.A., as Rights Agent, whichudels the
form of Certificate of Increase of Shares Desigdae Series A Junior Patrticipating Preferred SaxExhibit A, form of Right Certificate as Exhildtand the Summary of
Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock as Exhibit (

4.2 Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingagerong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds éecept of Flushing Financial Corporation's totaeds; therefore,
copies of constituent instruments defining the tsghf the holders of such debt are not includeelxsbits. Copies of instruments with respect tohslang-term debt will be
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commisgiam reques’

311 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeilétl herewith)

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢d herewith)

321 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officer (fuished herewith

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officer (fished herewith

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (furnished herewi

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (furnishedwith)

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutn@urnished herewith

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunéiurnished herewith

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documentiffshed herewith

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenngfurnished herewitt

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwiorm K filed September 26, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwiorm ¢-8 filed May 31, 2002

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwiorm 1¢-Q for the quarter endeSeptember 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wibrm ¢-K filed September 11, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm 1(-K filed March 15, 2012

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wibrm ¢-K filed December 23, 200!
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causedéport to be signed on its behalf by the undewesil thereunto duly authorized.

Flushing Financial Corporation,

Dated:_May 10, 2013 By: /s/John R. Buran
John R. Buran
President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated:_May 10, 2013 By: /s/David W. Fry
David W. Fry
Executive Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit No. Description

2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of Decem®e2@05 by and between Flushing Financial Corponatind Atlantic Liberty Financial Corp. (

3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Flushing Financ@brporation (1,

3.2 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (

3.3 Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorption of Flushing Financial Corporation (

3.4 Certificate of Designations of Series A Junior Rgating Preferred Stock of Flushing Financial @anation (4)

3.5 Certificate of Increase of Shares Designated agSArJunior Participating Preferred Stock of FlaghFinancial Corporation (2

3.6 By-Laws of Flushing Financial Corporation |

4.1 Rights Agreement, dated as of September 8, 20@&gelke Flushing Financial Corporation and Computamsirust Company N.A., as Rights Agent, whichudels the
form of Certificate of Increase of Shares Desigdae Series A Junior Patrticipating Preferred SaxExhibit A, form of Right Certificate as Exhildtand the Summary of
Rights to Purchase Preferred Stock as Exhibit (

4.2 Flushing Financial Corporation has outstandingagertong-term debt. None of such debt exceeds éecept of Flushing Financial Corporation's totaeds; therefore,
copies of constituent instruments defining the tsghf the holders of such debt are not includeelxsbits. Copies of instruments with respect tohslang-term debt will be
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commisgam reques’

311 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officeilétl herewith)

31.2 Certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sads-Oxley Act of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officeil¢d herewith)

321 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Executive Officer (fuished herewith

32.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarley @ct of 2002 by the Chief Financial Officer (fhished herewith

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (furnished herewi

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (furnishedwith)

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutn@urnished herewith

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docunéiurnished herewith

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Documentiffshed herewith

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenngfurnished herewitt

(1) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwihe Registration Statement on For-1 filed September 1, 1995, Registration No-96488.
(2) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwiorm K filed September 26, 200

(3) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwiorm ¢-8 filed May 31, 2002

(4) Incorporated by reference to Exhibits filediwiorm 1¢-Q for the quarter endeSeptember 30, 200

(5) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed witbrm ¢-K filed September 11, 200

(6) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wibrm 1(-K filed March 15, 2012

(7) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit filed wibrm ¢-K filed December 23, 200!
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FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, John R. Buran, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form@@f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or aonéttate a material fact necessary to make thenseats made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were,matimisleading with respect to the period covdrgdhis report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant aarad, for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ilm&hge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial rejpng (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial information
relating to the registrant, including its consotethsubsidiaries, is made known to us by othersimihose entities, particularly during the perindvhich this report is being
prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed under our supervjsioprovide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financiglaging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the effectivene§the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covereatiibyeport based on such evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most recestiafi quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) ltha materially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the registrant’s internal twhover financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiimternal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directonsgersons performing the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lljk® adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summasizd report financial information; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control ofieancial reporting.

Date:May 10, 201: By: /s/ John R. Bura
John R. Buran
President and Chief Executive Offic



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, David W. Fry, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Form@@f Flushing Financial Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or aonéttate a material fact necessary to make thenseats made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were,matimisleading with respect to the period covdrgdhis report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of
operations and cash flows of the registrant aarad, for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrk responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as defined ilm&hge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial rejpng (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15¢f) 45d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
a) designed such disclosure controls and procedoresused such disclosure controls and procedores designed under our supervision, to ensatentlaterial information
relating to the registrant, including its consotethsubsidiaries, is made known to us by othersimihose entities, particularly during the perindvhich this report is being
prepared;
b) designed such internal control over financigloréing, or caused such internal control over fiahreporting to be designed under our supervjsioprovide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financiglaging and the preparation of financial statemémt&xternal purposes in accordance with geneeabepted accounting principles;
c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the effectivene§the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covereatiibyeport based on such evaluation; and
d) disclosed in this report any change in the tegi$’s internal control over financial reportirftat occurred during the registrant’'s most recestiafi quarter (the registrant’s fourth
fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) ltha materially affected, or is reasonably likelynaterially affect, the registrant’s internal twhover financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiimternal control over financial reporting, teetregistrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant’s board of directonsgersons performing the equivalent functions):
a) all significant deficiencies and material weadses in the design or operation of internal comtvelr financial reporting which are reasonably lljk® adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summasizd report financial information; and
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s internal control ofieancial reporting.

Date:May 10, 201: By: /s/ David W. Fry
David W. Fry

Executive Vice President, Treasurer and
Chief Financial Office



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES

Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of FlushFigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Fol®-Q for the period ended March 31, 2013 as filét the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pértohn R. Buran, Chief Executive Officer oktlCorporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setfi350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygoresents, in all material respects, the firahcondition and results of operations of the Gogpion.

By: /s/ John R. Buran
John R. Buran

Chief Executive Officer
May 10, 2013



FLUSHING FINANCIAL CORPORATION and SUBSIDIARIES
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of FlushFigancial Corporation (the “Corporation”) on Fol®-Q for the period ended March 31, 2013 as filét the Securities and
Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8&ptarDavid W. Fry, Chief Financial Officer of th€orporation, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Setti850, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t to my knowledge:

(1) the Report fully complies with the requirents of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Repoitlygoresents, in all material respects, the firahcondition and results of operations of the Qogpion.

By: /s/ David W. Fry
David W. Fry

Chief Financial Officer
May 10, 201z



